Mr. CASSEL. We were satisfied, and supposed the majori
of the committee would be. S

Mr. SHIRAS. I am simply asking for fair play in this matter.
I say that nnless you show wWhose votes those were, they onght
not to be thrown out. It seems to me this is only ordi fair

play.

Lir. DRISCOLL. Will the gentleman allow me to ask one more
question—that is all?

Mr. SHIRAS. Certainly.

Mr. DRISCOLL. If those three districts—the Second and
Third wards of Winton and the first district of Old Forge—are
thrown out, how does that leave the vote?

Mr. SHIRAS. It leaves the vote 8 in favor of Mr. Howell.

Mr. DRISCOLL. Now, is it not true that Mr. Howell did not
try to prove aliunde any of the votes cast for him or any of the
illegal votes alleged to have been cast for Mr. Connell? ~That is
true, is it not?

Mr. SHIRAS. I will make a practical answer to that question
in thisway: It wascompetent, perhaps, for Mr. Howell to prove by
aliunde testimony the whole 2,000 votes, and it wounld have cost
him $10,000 or $15,000. That sort of proceeding on the other side
cost the contestant probably $50,000. Such a contest of ““ aliunde-
ism " wonld be a farce, and the prize would goto the biggest purse.

Mr. DRISCOLL. If you have read the evidence, have yon any
doubt that at least, we will say, 10 illegal votes, becanse that
number would be sufiicient, were shown by evidence alinnde but
competent to have been cast for Mr. Howell? Have you any
doubt about that?

Mr. SHIRAS, I did not quite catch the purport of the gentle-
man's question.

Mr. DRISCOLL. Is there not aliunde evidence sufficient to
ﬁiow ﬁ!;at at least 10 of these illegal votes were cast for Mr.

owell?

Mr. SHIRAS. ' I do not think so, upon the evidence,

Mr. DRISCOLL. Have you examined it?

Mr. SHIRAS, I have examined the testimony on which the
supporters of the contestant rely. .

r. DRISCOLL. You have not read it fully; you have not
read the whole of it.

Mr. SHIRAS. But you have not identified the voters. That
hihe reason I say that this evidence should have been barred
out.

Mr. FOSTER of Ilinois. Has the ﬁ:t'leman any doubt that
at least 20 of those votes were cast for Mr. Howell?

Mr. SHIRAS. Not the least. 5 3

Now, I want to call attention to another point. In these dis-
puted districts only 32 votes have been proved for Mr. Connell,
where 172 are returned. 'Were the rest of the votes returned for
Mr. Connell legal or illegal? Unless this question is determined,
it seems to me you have not proved anything. The danger that
;;gses in a case of this kind is clearly shown in respect to these

votes.
- Now, Mr. Speaker, I have taken more time than I e ted.
This is simply & question of asking for fair play. I'donot believe
it right to delegate our conseci in a close case like this to the
committee and allow them to determine the whole question of
law and of fact. I have no hesitation in coming to the conclu-
sion that it is unfair to the sitting Member, unfair to the Tenth
Congressional district, unfair to the State of Pennsylvania, and
unfair to the Republican party to unseat Mr. Howell. [Loud
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record a little appalled at the amonnt of work that the committee
1 ht was before it, and when Mr. Balentine, representing the
coptestee, arose to talk I inquired of him whe or not certain
ions eonld not be agreed upon by seq, 80 a4 to shorten
abor of the committee, calling his” attention diréctly to the

e

ward§ cast by men whose names were not on the regtstration list.
at was at the beginning of the hearing, and he saill that the
figures l:psented‘iby the attorney for the contestant inaccu-
is regard. ¥

rate in 4 Al

forget what the exact fi were with reference ﬂ> the Sec-
ond War{l of Winton; but itAvas something like 88 votes that the
condestant claimed had begh cast in this way, the names of those
who not: ay ing upon the registry list.| Mr. Balen-

’ 2 50 in that ward, that the balance of the
83 names oR that st were not names that did not appear on the
registry list, but that they were substitutions. ol

Now I waht to callthe attention of the Honseto whkat substi-
tutions meant under all irgumstances of this case.| The way
in which this, election was conducted in these three precincts—
and the metliod was the same thronghout this whole day of in-
iquity in those\three precincts—was this: They itted every-
body to vote. he evidence is abundant and incontradicted upon
that subject.
their/names werd written down on the pol
a man gave being\put down. / |

In Old Forge thd first two names of the men svho voted on that
day were names that did pot appear upon the registry list. Early
in the day they starled in that way, but as the day progressed it
ocenrred to some ond,in that conspiracy that that was not a slick
manner of doing this thing. . /

Toward the close of § the method had changed. In place
of writing new names ¥t did not appear mpon the registry list
upen_the poll books thay picked names on the registry list,
and they had the voter vote in liest of some man who was dead or
some one who had moyed ‘out ofy thatdistrict. These
sustained by the record. noroom for question.
stitnting the names of voterg who présented themselves first, for
names appearing on the registry list, it chanced in a great many
cages that the election officerdjand those doing this iniquitous act
had some man vote in lieu ofjs man who was not then p
but the man himself comi and voting afterwards nuder the
same name. Proof is abundany in this record of the witnesses
who testified that they voted butionce, whose names a r twice.
Mr. Holgate, the attorney for confestant, put in this list of names
a great number of : of m appeared in that

wa Fs /

}?&w. the argunment early,'and it was fiercely contested
before our committee ag to what wag the probative effect of these
two different kinds of illegal votes., The contention npon one
side was that where a fnan’s name did not a[;lmr at all upon the
registry list that was fan evidence of fraud that eould \not be ex-

plained—that it demonstrated'corruption and frand. | Upon [the
other sifle it was saidthat where a man ply came inand snbsti-
be

k; whatever name

tuted on voted as a gubstitute for some one whose name was upon
the registry list, while the vote would be'illegal just the sanie—
there was np cont.?nt.xon about that and no denial of it—yet fhere

the part of the judges the ves,and that was the issue that we
were trying befgre that edmmittee. I want Members to remem-

was a contention that it ?ﬂ not tend to corruption npon

ber that._ So they separgted thesedllegal vote into two clhsses,

=== ~f that arenment. in the wav T

The Roll Call And The Aftermath

A few moments after Nr.Lnnning and mgself,on the
Republican side,had concluded our remarks the speaker directed

that the roil be called on the motion to award the seat to the

contestant,Mr,Connell,

As the members voted,it soon became apparent

that the large xepublican majority would be greatly reduced or

wiped out,

.r\'-.
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those districts? Did he not have the same opportunity to prove
them if he wanted to?
Mr. SHIRAS. Now, gentlemen, I am trying to talk about the
uities in this cgse.

g . NORRIS. MayI tisk the gentleman a question?

Mr. SHIRAS. Certainly.
Mr. NORRIS. In your judgment, was the committee justified
Est%mwing out the three precincts? Do you agree with them in

Mr. SHIRAS. I do not agree with them on that point. I do
not criticise them very harshly, but I do not agree with them.

i \‘\ ‘What I think they ought to have done is, having found about 125

!'Q:\
I
!

!
|
{
|

irregular votes, some technically irregular and some absolutely
frandulent, they should have deducted those votes, even if t%zz
deducted them all from Howell. That would have been
enough, but to throw them all out was unfair, in my j ent.

Mr, CASSEL. In the report of the Second Ward of Winton,
184 votes were cast for Howell and 178 votes were declared and

ed fraudulent.

Mr. SHIRAS. Who fonnd them fraudulent?

- Mr. CASSEL. They were shown to be frandulent by the evi-
ence.

Mr. SHIRAS. Now, we find the case stands in this way. That
when they took the disputed districts this great number of votes,
amounting to nearly 800, were thrown out of the three precincts.
making a unanimous vote for Connell of 32 to nothing. That, if
sustained, would elect Connell by 24 majority. Now, that does
not look like much of a plurality to come into the House Whwe
with, with thonsands of pages of testimony at an expense of
thousands of dollars, showing only a plurality of 24, Well, what
does the committes do? They a taste of ‘‘ aliundeism,” and
they then did what, to my mind, is the one illegal proposition
that bars out most of this testimony. The testimony was taken
showing that 1,700 illegal votes were cast; yes, npward of 2,000,
If I am incorrect I wish the chairman would correct me——

Mr. DRISCOLL. Two thousand and two.

Mr. SHIRAS. Two thousand and two; and when the commit-
tee came to consider these votes they were of the osinion that
proot Thay atemptad o show that e sugmber had been st

a W a number cast
or Hrt.hgywell, and thousands-and msnnds of pages of testi-
mony were taken upon that branch of the case. do not say it
was wrong to take the testimony upon that point, but I say that
when the committee came to make the report they really barred
out the testimony and have prevented its ideration by the
House. They found, I repeat, that there were 1,700 illegal votes;
and what did they do? They file a report in which they say that
“at least 200 votes—that is the hnﬁ\mge of the report—‘‘at
least 200" of these votes were cast for Howell.

‘When they came to make the re , you find that in round
numbers they deduct 200 from Howell. Letmeshow yon what that
means. Upon an investigatiom of the attitude of the members of
the committee we find that they can not tell who the various parties
were, what their names were, or where they were located. Isthis
not mostextraordinary? Inmy mind it isthe turning pointin this
case. . Not only we as Republicans can not know, but the oppo-
gition a®e powerless to pass upon the two questions that arise in

ese 200 cases: Was the vote ﬂl:g&llsl, and was it cast for
Mr. Howell? Itis the introduction of bad precedent that
arouses in the main oggomnon.

Thus, having that there were 1,700 illegal votes, and
believing that * at least 200’ of them were cast for Mr. Howell,
they promptly charge them up and take from his count 200 votes
that are not identified by name or voting precinet.

Mr. KENNEDY. Why, they were passed upon by the major-
ity of the committee.

Mr. SHIRAS. I would like to ask the gentleman a question.
Does the gentleman mean to say that his committee passed upon
these 200 votes and has got them entered on the record, in the
minutes, as 200 voters from certain precincts? And by a vote of
the committee determined that they were illegal?

Mr. KENNEDY. The committee passed upon 200. In my

jnﬁi,grmem there are a thousand.
SHIRAS. Now, I want to ask the gentleman how he

on those 200. Where are they? What are their names?
y does the committee not have them in its report?
Mr. EENNEDY. I did not draw the report.
203&' RANDELL of Texas. The committee did not pass on the

Mr. SHIRAS. I am not saying there were not 200 illegal votes
there. I am notsaying that they onght not to be deducted, if
can prove them, but I say you have to do it in a legal way. {.O:tl'.
me say to the members oty the majority of this committee that
when they had a vote that they wanted to deduct from Mr.
Howell's count, one of the gentlemen shounld have said, *“ Mr.
Chairman, I move you that the vote of John Smith, illegal by

false registration or nonpayment of taxes, which vote the evi-
dence shows has been cast for Mr. Howell, shall be deducted
from his count.”” That should have been put to a vote of the en-
tire committee, and if the committes affirmatively by its major-
ity struck that out, the Republicans and Democrats voting upon
% tholrla that vote should have been taken from the count of Mr.

owell. .

But what have you done? You have simply come to the con-
clusion—all of you, as individuals—that there were ** at least 200
illegal votes out of 1,700 that were cast for Mr. Howell, and you
have deducted them without identifying them by the name of the
voter or voting precinct, a thing I never heard of, even in the
“golid South.” Now, nunless the members of this committee can
deny what I say here—that they have taken 200 votes that they
can not identify—it seems to me that it shows the dangeroms
character of the aliunde evidence, and it is upon that that this
gentleman I'ﬁcilint.ing] relies for obtaining his seat.

Mr. CASSEL. Mr. Speaker, let me answer that just here. First,
the members of the minority say that these questions were not dis-
cussed by the majority who signed this report. The majority
report was signed by the majority members of this committee, and
it was not submitted to the minority. We passed a resolution by
vote of the committee stating that we thought that Mr. Conneil
vmg epﬁt;ldeqtto his seat. The majority then prepared this report
and si it.

Mr. SHIRAS. Let me ask the gentleman a question—

Mr. JOHNSON. Mr. Sfeaker, will the gentleman let me make
a statement right here? 1 do not want to take any of his time,

Mr. SHIRAS, I will yield to the gentleman.

Mr. JOHNSON. The majority of the committee furnished the
minority of the committee the names of the thirty-two voters
whose testimony was established by aliunde evidence. We are
able to examine them and see for ourselves whether there is any-
thing upon which to base it. They do not furnish us any of the
list of the 200 men that they say illegally voted for Mr. Howell,
and we can not examine that, and the House can not,

Mr. DRISCOLL. Mr. S er, I would like to ask right here
the gentleman from South Carolina a question. Is it true that
the majority furnished the minority those thirty-two names? Is
it not true that I asked one member to furnish the names that
he had ¢xamined to the rest of us, and also to the members of the
mmon}y? e

Mr. JOHNSON. May I make another statement?

Mr. SHIRAS. Mr. S er, I have not yielded to the gentle-
man from New York [Mr. DRISCOLL].

Mr, JOHNSON. y I answer the gentleman’s question?

The SPEAEER. Does the gentleman yield?

Mr. SHIRAS. Yes; I will yield to the gentleman from South

Ca; a.

Mr. JOHNSON. The majority of the committee divided np
this work. That is the reason t\he{ do not know any more about
it. One man examined one part of the record and another man
another. I examined all ofit. That is the difference. [Laugh-
ber.{ One member of the committee who made up the list of the
32 aliunde votes handed that list to the ranking member of the
minority of the committee, and the majority of the committee
adopted his work.

. FOSTER of Illinois. Letme ask this question, Is there any
evidence in the record showing that the 200 votes thus thrown
ont were cast for Mr. Howell?

Mr. JOHNSON. We do not know whose votes those 200 were;
the names are not given.

Mr. SHIRAS. Now, I should like to make this reply to the
gentleman from Pennsylvania [Mr. Casser]. He having ad-
mitted that he and his five colleagues on the committee passed
upon these 200 votes; suppose that on the question of charging
up those votes for Mr. Howell or taking them away from hi
there had been a division among those six members of the com-
mittee; suppose the vote had been 4 to 2, then, if the Democratic
members had come in and voted on that question, that vote would
not have been thrown ont.

In other words, there was only a majority of a majority voting
upon that question of striking out these votes, The reauly; isthat
the committee itself does not know what those 200 votes repre-
sent. They could not a and have not agreed on that point.
Those votes are simply floating in the air, without name or habi-
tation. No one can identify those voters. No member of the
committee or anyone else can do so. 2

Mr. CASSEL. I believe that I speak truthfully when I say
that at least four of the six members of the majority of the com-
mittee, after having gone over the testimony in the case name by
name and man by man, comparing the testimony o. "~ - one side
and on the other, were in favor of putting into this report any-
where from 500 to 1,000 of those people.

i Mr. SHIRAS. It would not have been any worse if you had
one s0.
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an@hbﬂmﬂﬂ»ﬂwﬁmmm had to deal | plied
o!mmmﬁmy'

withone of the most difficult casesin
and number of witnesses of any case

therefore, I do not question sincerity of my fellow-
mambers who wr:Jte q'onty report, neither do I question
C\

to the question of alinnde
t point I want to say to
from

result? ma]omwﬁnd
of 223 votes in favor of the contestant out of a total
of 28,000 votes cast in that district. They have taken the posi-
ﬁon,newsmr}i}jr' that if there had been a change of 112 votes in

Connell—the contestant—would have been de-

ceded by the en,yt;mfmtﬂzt i mtwhﬂh:gth:szgng
majority o commitiee represens o
the House, the Democrats do not concede that the result was so
close. You must take the situation as itexisted there; and there
are equities in the case that seem to me to throw a great deal of
light on the situation. In the first place, we are told that we
ought to follow the majority of the committee because of the
great volume of testimony taken. Now, gentlemen, let me tell
you those are wooden guns piled up there. If you have listened
t.otha debate up to the present time you must have been satis-
fied of the fact that the case rests upona few pages of testi-
mony and several very simple propositions g
i y.rehg here is snbslanually quoted in the
minority r If m& reports and
gooff quietly by

ember will take the two
for an hour and analyze this case, he
will come to a conclusion without the necessity of looking into
the testimony further; or if he has listened to the debate of yes-
terday, he must in the same way have reached a conclusion as to
how he should vote.

Kow, theidea of any Republican here trying to hide behind that
mass of testimony, and saying, I am unable to delve into all the
depthsofthmmemﬂoometoamc}umm,mdlmwlasfymy
conscience by following the lead of this committee,” is, it seems
to me, fallacious. Some gentlemen on this side undertake to
ﬂnow the responsibility on the committee in that way. They

“lbekervetbemembetsofﬁtewmnnﬁeeto be honest, con-

ticus men. They have gone through thmmassufiaeshmony,

and we can not do better, under the circumstances, than follow
their conclusion.”

On that point I'wish your attention. The determination of this
case does not require the consideration of the festimony to any
gﬁatextentc The testimony 1

pon which the issue here turns has
n repeatedly read and referred to on both sides of the House.
Mr. D LL. Does the gentleman mean to say that all the
vidence has been read?
. All the material evidence, the evidence that you
has been mentioned, its character analyzed and pre-
to the Hounse.
Mr. DRISCOLL. We could not do that in a week.
Mr, SHIRAS., When youcome to consider the questions of law

uﬁtions, nine-tenths of this testimony must be ruled out abso-
utely.

Mr. CASSEL. Has the gentleman read the briefs of the con-
testant and contestee in this case?

Mr. SHIRAS. I have read the report carefully three or
four times and have consulted mth practically every member of
the majority of the committee except Mr. DriscoLL, whom I
tried to see several times. Imythem'ﬁb—

}Ir CASSEL. Iam iefs which set forth the

nted by the two committees.

Mr S As T have already said, I have not attempted to
readal.lthetasnmmymthecase, useIhavetakemthewﬂrd
of the majority as - rell as the minority of the committee that the
material evidence on which they rely been presented.

1 think it can e shown that the great mass of this testimony
must be ruled ouf, not mﬂybemuse it comes under the head of
aliunde proof, but\because this aliunde evxdenoemnnathap—

involved here, if you are inclined to give due weight to those-

mmmmawmmm
ont mmm consider the matter, Ay i
pages

ow, etuslookatmtheﬁmtumdtbismae. The'I'anﬂidia-
Democratic. The Democratic

| trict of Pennsylvania in 1902 was

candidate for governor carried it by some five or six thonsand ma-
jority; and before the election every Republican who knew any-
thing about the state of the case in that district knew that thers
was very little question that the Democratic ¢ ional candi-
datewwldmrythstdmdmwgh

()onsequently, the Democrats knowing this, andlmowingthat
they had more than a fighting chance, thmwasmmason
the world why f.hey should put forwmﬂamymseﬁnﬂve])emo—
crat to lead them to the victory w hwhwouldsnm!yoomewthem
in that district when the votes were cast in 1902,

Mr. GILBERT. What were the changed condxtions that led
peivtpletothnkmwonldgobem

SHIRAS. There was a series of labor
of the coal business there, and Mr. Omneliwasomof
ing coal operators, and it was natural underﬂ:memd.mmh

county of Lackawanna gave the Democratic candidate for
or between five and six thousand majority. Now’nad
be-

a

ﬂmﬁmﬁ knowing that this was coming, saw their du
theyth expected to nominate a Democratic candida
they expected to elect

? The kind friends of the contestant went
into a Democratic convention, disru
minority of the convention apparen
cate of nomination in Dau Connty. Mr. Howell, who hnﬂ.
the majority of the convention, also received a Democratic nomi-
ElnckMr Connell was and threw him off the Democratic

then- candidate.
Now, what haj
disrapted it, and, witha 'wry small
Alfhough h ke e char, :mud
nation. ongh he is coming here gmg
against the Democracy, he received and ﬁled
nation, and that was filed in Danphin Conn A contest arose,
and the courts of Pennsylvania decided that numma‘l:mn given
Mr. SWANSON, Do youmean he claimed to be the Demo-
cratic nominee?

Mr. SHIRAS. Yes.

Mr. GILBERT. What proportionof that convention voted for
Mr. Commell?

Mr. OLMSTED. Will my colleague permit a quesl:mn?

Mr. SHIRAS. Yes.

Mr. GILBERT. What proportion of the Democrats in that
couwn
Mr. SHIRAS. T have eldod tomy ouﬂeaﬁ Mr. OLMSTED.

Mr. OLMSTED. I m nftmth the Dezao-
cratic convention for nommahng or attempting

blican.

Mr. GILBERT. Asa Democra

Mr, SHIRAS, Isay Mr. Gannell went to a Democratic conven-
tion and was nominated.

M OLMSTED. Letme ask my co]league if he himself was
not nominated by a Democratic organization

Mr. SHIRAS. Yes, and the three other Re_pnbhcan Gong'reas—
men in Allegheny County also received Citizens
Mr. Darzevn himself received a Citizens’ nomnnahom aithongh
he did not receive a Democratic nomination.

Mr. OLMSTED. Didyoureceive Democratic
you elected in that way against the regular Repu
Is not that the fact?

. SHIRAS. That is notthe fact, sir, as stated. Iranasan
avowed Republican, and, as is often the case, received several
party nominations.

Mr ELUTTZ. The Democrats did not vote for yon, did they?

Mr. OLMSTED. A good many of them did. [Laughter.]

Mr. SHIRAS. As this matter is becoming a little personal,
perhaps I had better refer briefly to the political situation in Alle”

and wers
nominee?

gheny County. 'We have not any Democratic in Allegheny
County practically, for they have Jomed in the t for gov-
ernment; we have two Republican parties there. the Demo-

crats had run a Democratic candidate in my against two
he wonld not reaeweprohably more than 4,000 votes

ﬁwﬂl(‘

Republicans,
out-of the 30,000 votes cast. e
‘Mr, CONNE To which party do yon

belong?

Mr, “When the vote was taken there I had 14,500
votes; %he other Republican had about 14,500 votes, so there was
but sverysmall difference between the two, but 'the vote that
was cad* there for me represented the untrammeled, nonoffice-
hol&uelgvot.e in my district. I think I got practically every fair-—

inded, untrammeled Repnblican vote in that district in that
particular contest. [Lamghtersd I will tell you why I think so.
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Mr. OLMSTED. Then thereare14,500 trammeled Republicans

that district? hter.
Mr. SHIRAS. %g;lﬁut th:t‘!mm . officeholders in

that district, Federal, State, and county [la ,and two or
three th L iy ufhnee]?ows

relatives. Now, I got few of

. CASSEL. What has be ome of the ' that nomi-
i:iat.ed you at that time? Have not they gone back into the Repub-
can party?

Mr. SHIRAS. I am not going back into the pedigree of Alle-
gheny County politics. No one can undersmdp:hem, and I can
not expect the gentleman to understand them.

Mr. GILBERT. There is no contest about your seat._

Mr. SHIRAS. The gentleman
| mnawa tiffg that I did not re; t the Republicans in
|  my ict, intimating that if I did I would have a larger

| majority.
[ Mr. OLMSTED. No; I think it simply shows that you have
become one the BP0 officeholders. ~[awsirtend
Mr. SHIRAS. You look at it from a different point of view.
Now let me tell you gentlemen about that district. ﬁ; Republican
opponent ran on the *‘ organization’’ Republican ticket, on the
] game ticket as Governor Penn: ker, on the so-called * straight
| Republican ticket.” Governor Pennypacker carried the Twenty-
ninth Congressional distriet by 20,000 majority, and my Repub-
| lican opponent was not elected. Did the Democrats do that? My
| opponent ran 20,000 votes behind the Republican State ticket in
‘ Ehl?: e(égngrm’on&l district. Could he have been more badly de-
eated?
| Mr. EENNEDY. The same thing occurred over in Lacka-
wanna, did it not?

Mr. SHIRAS. Iam being diverted from what I was saying.

Mr. GILBERT. Now the gentleman answer my question?

‘What proportion of the Democrats in the convention in this Con-
gressional district were in favor of the nomination of Mr, Connell
as the Democratic nominee? .

Mr. THAYER. Thirty-two out of 192.

Mr. SHIRAS. Now, gentlemen, you do not want to hear me
| on what the Democrats of Allegheny County could, would, or
| should have done, or my political pedigree, but it is simply a ques-
| tion of fact, ““ Who was elected?”’ and you can not see who has
| been elected, for the Committee on Elections hagh seo limited the
| inquiry that not over fifteen of the witnesses whose testimony

was taken is material to this issme.
| Mr. SIBLEY. Let me call your attention—
| Mr. SHIRAS. Let me give the reason, becanse I do not want
| to make a statement.and then have to analyze it before I go on.
| 1 started to say that the result of this Democratic convention was
| that not only was Mr. Connell’s nomination thrown off the Dem-
| ocratic ticket, but Mr. Howell, the admitted Democrat, whoposi-
tively-was a -Democrat and whom the Democrats knew had a
‘ chance of election, was also thrown off the Democratic ticket.
The SPEAKER. The time of the gentleman has expired.
| Mr. McLAIN.
| he desires it.
| Mr. SHIRAS. The controversy that arose in this Democratic
convention, in which the contestant desired to carry off the prize,
is not material, or ought not to be, except for one phase. Every-
one here who is candid will admit that if Mr. Howell had been
| before his district on the straight Democratic ticket, it would
| have given him four to five thousand Democratic majority, and
| he would have certainly gotten it but for the e inary and
|  pecunliar methods of procedure of that Democratic convention.
| Therefore I say, gentlemen, the question in this controversy is
| asto the alleged Democratic convention, with a Republican can-
| didate, and an actual Democratic candidate. I take it that all

I will yield the gentleman ten minutes more if
L ]

that Mr. Howell got 461 majority, instead of the 4,000 or 5,000
he ordinarily would have had. It is difficult for this committee
to show that all these votes were intentionally fraudulent. I take
the position that in the consideration of this case there is mo
doubt that the committee has failed to fully understand the sub-
sequent effect of this Democratic convention when figuring upon
the majority that Howell would have had.

Mr. CASSEL. Do you mean to say that the committee, which
has given two weeks’ tontinuous work in going over this evidence
and testimony, four weeks almost, commencing at 10 o’clock in
the morning and continuning until 5 o’clock, and givineg Warongh
their report their conclusions that they have arrived at, that
they do not know more of it than you, when you say that you
- R RAS. ] have betm ery g to get bo the very ptopost
[ T. 3 ve been tryi g e very proposi-
| tion, because the bulk, perhaps, of this testimony, showing what

you did, is what has led up to my general proposition, viz, whether
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‘| seat under this evidence. Now, what do

“ballot box?

Republican Members here who are in favor of fair play well know |-

you have established the fact of Mr. Connell being entitled to a
do? You find 461
plurality in favor of the Democratic date, and you 5
that to 223 in favor of the contestant. How do you do that? P8
to a certain point the committee did not go astray. .It showeﬂ,E
think, good ]Jluﬂgmam when it took up the case pre-
, which they charged to have been, on their face, full of frand.
To take these up and with careful judgment proceed to deter-
mine how they would get at the fraud and what effect the fraud

had on the general result. \ .
But they did not treat it fairly. Inthefirst place, they found 50
illegal votes of persons who had not paid their taxes, 50 illegal

votes of persons who had not registered, and those, to some
extent, were technically illegal votes, but instead of taking those
votes out of Old Forge and the Second and Third wards of Win-
ton, and even charging all against Mr. Howell, what did the;
do? They threw out the entire 797 votes, though Mr. Howell h

454 majority. «

Mr. McLAIN. May the lgent!eman allow me to interrupt him
for a moment just to sa; will allow him as much time as he
waﬁtsgndhecan mﬂ:hedesims.isth % kot

T oW, , gentlemen, e starting poin
this case. Here are districts that cast 797 votes, that gave Mr.
Howell 625 votes and 172 to the contestant, and an admigsion that
part of these were technically illegal ballots and not frandulent in
the worst sense. They threw ont those 797 votes, and they do not
show in the evidence taken in Old Forge and in the Second and
Third wards of Winton thatany single one—mark me—that a sin-

1o one of those frandulent votes had been cast for Mr. Howell, = ___

t,on the con
that they were cast for the contestant. Is that not correct, I ask
the gentleman from New York?

Mr. SWANSON. You mean that there was no frand on the

Mr. SHIRAS. I say in the proof they did not attem;
any of those illeg] votes had been cast for Mr. Howe!
Mr. SWANSON. They weresimply people who voted not being

properly registered.
ﬁ:gmﬁs There may have been false im tions,
ay.have.be ses of exin frands, but I am not de-
fending that; I am analyzing how the{l]got at the question of the
separate fraudulent votes or assumed votes——
r. GILBERT, They cast that vote to Mr. Howell withont
any proof—

Mr. SHIRAS. They found nothing, in my judgment, which
should lead to the throwing out of the entire precincts. The re-
sult of that was that Mr. Howell still had 8 ma%ority and then
they went back and by aliunde proof—here is the dangerous point
in their process, by aliunde proof—they found that 32 of those 797
votes been cast for Mr. Connell. ow, what was the result,
gentlemen, of that finding? It was this: Here were three pre-
cinets with 797 votes and with the large majority of 454 for Mr.
Howell which were absolutely thrown out. ey destroyed this
entire vote, yet found Mr. Howell elected by 8 majority. They
then go back and go over the embers, you might say, of the de-
stroyed votes and find 32 for Mr. Connell, and turn that Demo-
cratic district, which gave 454 majority for Mr. Howell, over to
Mr. Connell by a unanimous vote—382 for Connell, nothing for
Howell. It seems incredible. by

Mr. SWANSON. Which gave that majority?

Mr. SHIRAS, Yes. ;

Mr. DRISCOLL. Will the gentleman yield for a question?

Mr. SHIRAS, Certainly. Fois

Mr. DRISCOLL. Is not that the ordinary practice, tkat when
a district or poll is thrown out for fraud, to go back snd prove
votes cast for both parties by evidence aliunde? Was that not
done in the Fifty-fifth Congressin the case of Wise v. Toung and
in many other cases? ;

Mr. SHIRAS. I do not think it was ever done vader condi-
tions as they existed in this case. ;

Mr. DRISCOLL. No two conditions in electiont are exactly
alike, but where we throw out votes of certain disiricts because
of fraud, the practice for both partiesis to go backand prove the
votes cast for their candidates aliunde. :

Mr. SHIRAS. Now, I want to ask a question in return. Isit
not a fact that those three districts cast 797 votes, which gave
Mr. Howell a majority of 454 votes, and b{sth:owing_out those
precincts it still left a majority of 8, and that the action of the
%c;mmiﬁ;.ee in finding those 82 votes put the result in favor of Mr.

nne

Mr. DRISCOLL. Why, yes, but— [Applause on the Demo-
cratic side.g Oh, there is nothing to cheer =bout this; we are
dealing in facts here. We stated it yesterdey o irselves, and it is
not necessary for a Mugwump from Pe ivauia to state it over
%ain. I simply say, is it not the invariagle jnle? Did not Mr.
owell have the same chance to go back gnd ,)rove his votes in

to prove
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(:E’ The vote was as follows: Connell 156; Howell 148,

/L/;/‘ s thai.a change of four votes would have permitted the sitting
member to retain his seat,

X Before the roll call a number of Kepublicans
absented themselves,while a half dozen more sat in their seats and
merely answered "present® when their names were called. Had a
small fraction of those who refused to vote,as evidence of their
dissatisfaction,given their support to Mr.Howell he would not have
been ousted.

During the confusion following the announcement
of the result,Judge walter I. Smith of Council Bluffs, Iowa,came
to me and said,"I have been in Congress a number of years,but this
is the first time 1 had reason to be ashamed of my vote. Had you
opened the attack at the beginning of the proceedings,instead of
at the end,it would have given many of us a chance to get our bear-
ings., 1 had definitely pledged my vote to Mr.Connell and had not
courage enough to shift at the last moment,® There were other

Kepublicans who did not feel this way,for General Grosvenor, the
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doughty old war horse from Ohio,purposely passed my seat that he
might shout out,*Some day you will regret having voted for that
Democraﬂ" I answered that I”was not voting for a Democrat but for
Justice, g

it may be stated that my attitude in this contest was
approved by practically all my constituents and the other voters
in the adjoining districtis. r2 received assurance of a renomination
by the parties that had previously suppdrted me,while a message came
from the nepubucan organization vhat whisde 1t understoocd 1 was not
a candidate for replection,it seemed certain that if 1 were awean-
daeate 1 would receive the support of the nepublican leaders o
did not wish to see me succeeded by my former opponenté}:o:': g;ég.:
clation witn wo¥enor Stone naa prought him into po‘pular disfavor.
On the other hand General Urosvenor,by reason oI a factional row
nhad later been refused a renemination,and in his resntment tried to ;
get the Democratic nomination Io0or Congress,in wnicin he failed,tnus
showing that his party fealty was only skin deep.

My $wo distinguished colleagues who had been elected
on the ‘citizens' ticked at the time I was,voted for Connell,saying
to me in explmtion,that. they hoped to receive the regular Repub-
lican nomination next time,which might be jeopardized if they wted
for a Bemocrat, These hopes,however,were blasted,for having become
"regular" they were cast aside by the political bésses as ones no
longer to be feareds I cite these instances as indicating that em
allegience—to-a political party based en blind partisanship,or
indueed-by political timidity,does not appeal to the electorate at
home,

As a sequel to this part of the narrative,it may be

stated that when I declined to be a candidate,my perscnal friend
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and political associate,Stephen G. Porter,leader in the &tizena'
party movement,was given the regular Republican nomination for
Congress,over my old rival W.H.Grahem,and was elected by wmwer 20,000
majority. Mr. Porter has been successively re-elected,until he has
now served some twent}-five years,attaining the high position of
Chairman of the Committee on Foreign Relations, This result indicate
how the temporary reform movene‘xftjl hag bro:;]‘ éhe political shackles
of nearly fifty years,and mﬂ the voters the opportunity to

oA
select candidates whe atan&' high in the popular esteem,
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The Clerk read as follows:
;- House rwoluum No. 195.
Reoo!mdm'!'hat Hon. George ‘Eownl] notelected & Representative in the

is
from t
Ooné;maa o th dclsm‘.ct of the State of Pennsylvania.
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Mr. McLAIN. Mr. Speaker, I yield fifteen minutes to the gén-
tleman from lvania [L[r

Mr. SHIRAS. t. Speaker, I have mmmed the majority and
minority reports in this case. Thave also looked over the evidence

o

| | that was considered material, and I consulted at a considerable

length of time with the jority of the members that composed
thagtRepnbhsan majori m‘ﬁl thn}; committee. Notwithstanding

| the consideration given to the report of the majority, I find T am

unable to agree in the recommendations made by my party col-
leagues. In the first place, permit me to say that I do not ques-

.| tion for an instant the mncent;y of the gentlemen who compose

the majority of this committee. Anyone who listened to the re-
marksof the gentleman from Iowa [Mr. BIRDSALL] antl t.ha chair-
man of this committee, the gentleman from New k [Mr.

DriscoLL], must be n:npressed with the fact that thasa men
believe they are right.
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LAW, LAWMAXING, AND POLITICS

PART I
College Lays, Early Political Experiences, then and thereafter.
1877 - 1887
PART II
Nomination, Election and Service in the Pennsylvania Legislature.
1888 - 1890 .
PART III
4, Cendidacy at two successive primaries for the Republiean namination for Congress.

3. The aftermath of the above campaigns.

PART IV

Nomination, Election and Service in the 58th Congress.
1902 - 1905

PART ¥V

Preparation of monogranhs on Nationel “olice Fower, the Constitutionality of
Federal laws protecting Migratory birds/ and migratory fish, the Constitutionality
of the Protective Tariff, the Unconstitutionality of the Canadian Reciprocity Agree=
ment, the Character of the Federal Jurisdiction over Public Heslth, the need of a
senarate League of Nations in imerica and Europe, the history of the original Migra-
tory Brid Bill,
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PART I
College Days, Early Political Experiences, then and thereafter.
1877 - 1887

1, College Days |
A. Cornell
: 1, Greek letter fraternities,
X “"2. Thesis on the U.S. Comstitution.
3. Political Activities at Cornell.
4. First and last meetings with Theodore Noosevelt
B. Yale Law School
1. Class mates (nespaper article on Col. House.)
2. Debates.
3. Thesis on the Protéetive Tariff,
4, Academic rating.
S. Decline election to the Presidency of Kent Club.

2, Begin the Practice of Law.
Ae Starting out as a 1 er.
B, The case of the forgefwill - circumstantial and direct evidence.

3. ™A Pig Iron State and a Pigmy Statesman”
A. The election of Cenator Juay.
B, Circulation of the pamphlet entitled "i Pig Iron State, etc.”
Ce. Comments of the public ard en attempt to bring Senator Juay to trial in e
litel suit against the suthor.

L, MNewspaper clippings.

PART II
Nemination, Election and ervice in the Pennsylvania Legislature.
1888 = 1890,

4. Campaige for the Legislature.

A.Becomes a Candidate for tie Legislature.

B. Bampaigg Cards and literature. : W
ﬁ C. A political story - "A Beer Bottle and aBetsde”.
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The Legisiature as a political training school.
Ae. Personnel of tho Legislature.
B. The legislaturs as a political training school.
Bank legislation and its strange sequels.
A, Some bank legislation.
B. A deadlock, defeat of the Bill, consequences.
Miscellaneous legislative record.
A, Gets = surprise (initiation to the Legislature).
B. The Legislature convenes.

1, The Pemnnsylvania R.R. Pass.

2, Comnittee assignments.

3¢ Friendly treatment by the leaders.
Ce A Proposed illegal act and its final enactment in that form (the Distilleries Bill)
I'!« The Crade Crossing Bill.
E, Clippings on the Crade Crossing Bill.
F. Bill for better treatment of insane females.
C. Picture of State Capitol, Harrisburg.
H, ssions of good will from s on the, Jgieian Committee. s

\9, . .9- '.- e ,,,. y A.’-a/Mﬂ-.__-;‘; fy.a‘ :;._ =R W,‘} SRy I 7/
i = J‘ w,J o PO
PART III £/
Gudidacy at Two Suecessive Primaries for the Republican
Nomination for Congress. The aftermath of these campaipgns.

Tho Contest for the maumﬁw W% S

ie Nomination of Stone. - y /Zf—-azé
B, Contested election of delegaten. }21"“-77’_“.:3‘; )

%2 Had to give up his stclen 3

De Closing days of the campaign.

E. lominated in another conventicn.

F. Hewspaper clippings.
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1.

12,

14.

(4)

cessful reforn movement and the conviction and isprisonment of Mayor Wyman
successful reform movement.
of the auditors.
Mayor brought to trial.
¥ayor convicted.
revealing interview and ite consequences.
« The Mayor's relation to the Bayne and Stone campaigns.
2, Mayor gets workhouse instead of pemnitentiary semtence.
De Beginnings of a new regime.
1.Kennedy becomes Mayor.
2, Father appointed to Supreme Court.
3« Retire from polities to work in law fim.
E. Circulars of the Citizens Committee.

?ryié
E?g

0
=

Attempted impeachment of Judge ¥hite.

Ao Dismuieting rumors.

B, Preparation of Impeachment Resoluticn.

C. Resolution temporarily sidetracked.

D, Preparations for consideration of the Resolution,
E, Interview Graham and get corresnondence with ihito.
F, Some subsequent discoveries.

G, Notarized statement of Carles V. Robison.

He. Letters to ¥r. Shiras on the White Case.

I. Letters from ¥r. Shiras on the White case.

Jo Newspaper clippings.

Redeeming Yest Virginia

A, Hunting deer and votes in West Virginia.

Be Loatter from Finence Comittee to raise funds to redeem West Virginia.
C. Letter from W.E. Seymour (1896) asking help in raising monay.

Friendships of the "Knights of the Round Table™

PART IV
NOMINATION? ELECTION AMD SERVICE IN THE 58th CCLICRESS.
1902 - 1905

The Citizens Party.

4, Organization to overthoow the Republican ring.

B. Accepts nomination for Congress {June 18, 1902).

C. Address by lMr. Shiras on "Ring Rule" (September, 1902).

De Election to Congress (1902). oy, : :
E. Some w literature. A ?,’ [ (La) ”r..-‘l. porlluond ﬁ i
F. ’ : eT olim /H. C,\a).-__.. . - ;_,- f/ ,%46’)“
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17.
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The 58th Congress.
A. Unique history of the 58th Congress (incomplete.)
B. First Session of the 58t¢h Congress (incomplete,)
Ce Ulder members of the 58th Congress.
Ee Prominent leaders who served in the L8th Congress.
1.{Contains detailed account of Sheppard.)
F, Some of the distinguished Cenators serving during the 58th Congress.
C. Vice Presidenticl Cendidates in the 58th Congress.
1l.{Garner sho 1d be added to this list.)
He The daily routine in Congress.
I. Specisl and general legislation.
J« Clogk room intimacies.
K, Wits of the House.
L, First impressions often valuable.
Y, Need of new standing committees.
N, Newspaver clippings.
I 'lau not a O dato for He-Elegtion", ,_,‘_,’;J;

06 Latter - L
(\_,?_,0).)—1/”%.- ~ T o? t.-»)\v'-i \

The 58th Congress - Committee on Publie Lands.

As Appointement of House Committiees.

B. Membors of Commiitiee on Pubiie Lands.

C. Repeal of the Timber and Séote Act.

D, Hational Park in “ashington.

B, Helle 710443 or Elk Hational Park,

F. Rocord of hearings on Homesteads in South Dakots snd Colorado.
G. Relief o seitlers in Oregon.

He Yessage from the President to the Publie Lands Commission.

I, Miscellanecue.

Contested election case of Comnnel vs. Howell.
Aie Events leading up to the contest,

B. Congressional Record on the cnse,

C. The vote and eventual resulis.
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GREEK LETTER FRATERNITIES

As I look back to my college days, it seems to me that the outstanding
influence to which I was subjected was my four years of association with the
Alpha Delta Phi fraternity. The members were housed in an adequate building, with
a commodious living room and library, lodge room on the third floor, and ample
suites of bed rooms., Their contacts were of necessity, and indeed from choice,
intimate.

Most of the Ameriean colleges and universities have from ten to twenty
Greek letter fraternities. Princeton, which has developed the college club,
has none, Harvard looks upon them as social clubs. Yale has a one year system
for junior societies. They have a hundred or more members and are looked on
as stepping stones to the more exclusive senior societies. In the other insti-
tutions, as a rule, fraternity membership is open to members of all classes.

The close personal contact with fraternity associates for so many years
results, as a matter of course, in the closest intimacy and lays the foundation}
at the very time when friendship is most easily cultivated and mainteined, for
lifelong friendships. The fraternity memberships, representing widely separated
parts of the ikm country, are a cross section of American life. The associations
in them, thus, thend to give the individusl a much more understanding view of
his own people than can be obtained in the class room or as a snectator on
the athletic field. I found the debates nnd discussions during the weekly
meeting in the lodge of great interest and bemefit., While I believe it is
quite true that the soeial life within the chapter detracted somewhat from the
quality of the work within the class room, yet all learning is not to be found
within the text books. I am convinced that in most cases what is gained from
fraternity life goes far to make up for what may be lost because of it in the

class rooms
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DUCK SHOORING ON CAYUGA LAKE

My particular diversion away from the campus during my college life was
duck shooting on Cayuga lake. I had killed many deer on my annual visits to the
Leke Superior country end had got my full share of wild pifgeons and geese,
but Leke Superior, £ large, deep, and cold, herbored few, if any,-sukds. At A,
My shooting companions on Lake Cayuga were fellow collegians and,on occasion,
sportsmen in the town. I have always felt that these outings contributed greatly
to my good health, and they gave me an impetus to take that interest in wild life

which was to be so intensified in future years.
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THESIS ON THE U.S. CONSTITUTION

During the senior year, the classmen were asked to prepare & paper on
some significant subjeet in which they were particularly interested. With
youthful temerity, I selected as my theme, "The Origin and Objects of the United
States Constitution™. That it was a crude and superficial endeavor was cuite
inferable from the polite appraisement made by the professor into whose hands
it went: "Please read your paper again after you have been out of college
four years, You will then realize more clearly what I have in mind them if I
were to write a criticism now.," In later years I well understood what he
meant, but I was pleased to find some paragraphs that seemed to possess some
merit in my more matured judgement. I quote one:

"The Constitution of the United States is not an iron band uwpon the body |
corporate and constrictive of future growth, but like the bark of a tree, |
it expands to meet new and unforeseen necessities. ¥While supposedly consisting
only of enumerated powers, all others being reserved to the states o the

people, tnere are meny other powers which can be implied from the general

purposes of the central gcvermment or which are inherent as the necessary

attributes of sovereignty. Consenuently, it is not always necessary to

amend the Gonstitution when some additional powers are needed, but these can |
come by judiciel interpretetion or by acts of Congress.” . |

In the light of the fifty years that have passed since these sentences
were written, I find corsidersble verification of their estimate. The judicial
construction or legislation by Congpess on the clause in the Consitution
authorizing the regulation of commerce with foreign nations or between the states
is an indication of the soundness of this early view, This power was origiamally
exercised only in preventing the several states from nutting a ban, or restrictionm,
on commerce between the states. But later, it became the createst positive
force in reguluting) or even prohibiting, many forms of foreign and interstate
commerce.

In comparatively recent years the Federal government assumed control of
navigable waters, even to the extent of becoming a proprietor. This has occurred
although the word 'navigation' or any of its synonyms is not to be found in the
Ehtttdddkf Condtitution, Likewise, the Federal quarantine has been established

and greatly expanded so as to protect public health and to protect and promote
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the agricultural ihdustry. The word 'quarantine' is not to be Iound in the
Constitution, but the function, being an accepted power inherent in the sovereignty
of all progressive nations, comes as a matter of ovurse within the scope of the
Federal government.

The extension of public works tc include irrigation, reclamation and water
power would have been frowned on fifty years ago. Taxation has been used to
wipe out the currency of stete banks and to control the sale of oleomergarine
in interstate commerce., Restrictive immigration laws have been expanded far
beyond the enumerated purposes of the Constitution as viewed by its makers,
The constitutional provision regulating 'controversies between states' which
was originally conceived to relate to boundary disputes, or like disputes involving
the sovereignty of two or more states, has now been construfed to mmmmxx cover
disputes over excessive water pollution and the equitable distribution of water
for irrigation or reclamation purposes.

Although the first decision on this group of guestions was reached by a
vote of five to four, subsequent decisions in which the same points have been
involved were unanimous. In one of the last of these cases, it wes held that
no state could unreasonably pollute or poison the atmosphere, to the the detri-
ment of an adjoining state.

Many other examples might be cited, but those given, suffice to give

authoritative support to the author' early views.
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POLITICAL INTERESTS AND E.7. HOUSE

Before going to college, I had only a casual interest in politicel
affairs, I entered Cornell Uriversity in the fall of 1877, but it was until
the fell of 1880, during the coneluding days of the presidential campaizn between
Garfield and Hancock that I became interested in the outcome of a nstional
election, Among my intimate classmates and a member of the same fraternity
was Edward ¥. House, who in latel'years became a leader of ths Democrats in
his native state of Texas and during President Wilson's terms of office became
his close friend and adviser. House is still well-remembered for his frequent
representing of the President abroad during the World War and thereafter, in
the capacity of spokesman or special envoy.

As I recall it, House and I were the only members of the fraternity
suffieiently interested in the campaign te visit the newstand every evening
to get without delay a cooy of the day's issue of the Mew York Tribune and World,
the leading organs of our respective parties. I ventured to make a few
addres?es in some of the country sbhool houses where callow uttersnces would
be endured. But House, never given to public speaking, helped with his
advice and finances, the cawse of the local Democratic organizetions. At that
time, I discovered thoseelements in Col. House whick afterwards made him one of
the outstanding figures in imerican public life. He was quiet and suave in
manner with a remarksble aptitude for understanding almost any situation
whether it be politieal or relating to the social life of his college mates.

He frequently became the peacemaker in the many little controversies arising
among us. His unruffled demeanor did not mean that he lacked spirit or
courage, for deep within him was a touch of southern temper that became manifest

on several occasions.
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YALE LAW SCHOOL

THE PRCTECTIVE TARIFF

In the fall of 1881 I entered the Yale Law School, intent upon giving
more sarious attention to ry studies than they had heretofore received. Imn
this I was fairly successful, though the Long Island Sound, with its winter
duck shooting, proved a temptation to which I frequently yielded.

The Law School offered at that time a two years course, which was later
inereased to three. In the classes, Junior and Senior, were sn average of
forty members. The school had a well deserved reputation, due to its excellent
faculty and the condition that the small size of the classes made practicable
the recitation system which had been given up in the larger schools. In most
of the latter type, the lecture system, with its ovportunities for shirking
work, prevailed.

I shall pass over in these pages the routine work of the #lass room and
refer to matters of greater interest to those planning to follow the profession
of law. The Kent Club concerned itself principally with mock trials, the
argument of the legal principies in certain cases and debates on questions
of national interest. A presidential election was pending, with the prineinle
issue as the protective tariff. During the first debate, I was surnrised
to find thattwo-thirds of the students were free traders. 'ith theee excertionms,
the remainder were unfamiliar with the subject, so at the outset the free
traders had things pretty much their own way.

Their relative strength in the Club had a simple explanaticn. In each
class were from eighteen to twenty stud nts who had entered the Law Sehool
after having been graduated from the academic department of Yale where they
had been subjected to the influence of William Summer, one of the lsading
political economists of the country. It has been often said that practically
all the students who heard Professor Sumner's lectures were, at graduation,
ardent free traders, whereas ten years later most of them had accented the

lpetrine of the the protective tariff,
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I happened to be one of the three students who had given some attention
to the subject and had come to believe in protection., As I came from the
great induatrial city of Pittsburgh this was not surprising. Naturally enough
my free trade associates contended that the selfish local interests of my home
towh accounted for my views and for my willingness and desire to subject the
entire country to a poliey that particularly benefitted the industrial centers.

Among my classmates was Daniel W. Lawler of St. Paul, accepted by the
students of the Law School and by the College at large as the most polished
and trenchant debater among the undergraduates. A sincere Democrat, he
accepted and advocated the principles of free trade. When, however, he found
the three lone protectionists overwhelmed by the skillful and fervent attacks
of the Summerites, his sympathy went out to us. While he did not come out for
protection) his searching criticism of the arguments of our opponents proved
of great help to us in winning recruits.

I realized fram the beginning that to make progress we had effectively
to meet that charge that in Pittsburgh and other industrial cities favored by
the tariff only the favored few were its beneficiaries and that such advantages
as the system had were more than offset by the burden it imposed on the commmnity
at large. The state of Commecticut, in which we were temporarily residing, and
the other New England states contained many manufacturing establishments. The
wellfare of the communities in which they were located depended almost wholly
on protective tariff barriers.

To clinch my point I finally offered sn examnle of the dependence of a

community upon the presence and prosperity of its manufacturing esteblishments,.

The Willimantic Thread Mills had recently been built upon the banks or/‘:;-‘ivar

of that name, whence it had abundant water power that permitted of low oper=-
ating costs. Up to that time, the American market was supplied with thread
from Great Britain and Europe. The cost was so high that the home producer was
assured a good market if he could be secure against the likelihood that,
Saeed—ritirteom=e-
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faced with domestic competion, the foreign manufacturers would reduce their
prices 50 percent, and the further probability that, if this did not suffice to
destroy the new American industry, they would sell below cost to nzcomplish
their purpose.

) The Willimantic mills were, in effect, the creation of the protective
tariff. Congress was memoralized on the subject, and assured that with protec=-
tion for a homo thread industry, capital for domestic mills could be secured
and the home market developed, with ultimately lower prices for thread, The
argument was impressively urged, and following enaction of the tariff, the
barren hillsides that were the site of the Willimentic mills beceme the loecation
of a busy and prosperous commmunity in which the nearby farmers found a profit-
able market for their products.

In order to bring home to my fellow students the benefits of the tariff,
direct and indirect, and also its benefits to the consuming publie, I arranged
with an executive of the mills for a visit to Willimentic by all the students
of the alw school., ¥e were assured of a cordiel reception end promised a
lunch on the day desiznated.

The trip to Willimantic was made in a special train which waited to take
us back. Ve were shown thoroughly through the large factories filled with
hundreds of operatives, mostly young women from New England farme or members
of households within tke recently constructed town. These employees had found
a ready and satisfactory income within buildings where sanitray surroundings
had been carefully provided.

A glence at this little settlement told the simple story of the direct
and collateral benefits of the protective tariff. This was understood much
more easily than in the case of large industriasl centres. It was apparent
that this once barren hillside and unused water pcwer had been brought into
occupetion and use by a single item in the tariff lew. Every business house

and every dwelling, every office building and every member of the varied
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professions owed their presence to the successful operation of a single plant.

Of equal importance was the fact that the cost of thread had been reduced
far below the prices originally paid on foreign imports. Thus the little town
was a visible unit of the tariff system, and the consuming public throughout
the country shared equally in the common benefits.

In conclusion, I have reason to believe that the determined fight made
by the little band of protectionists at the beginning had won the respect of
the M, and their action was teken as a graceful compliment to this
element. Unﬁe:r the circumstances, it was perhaps natural that the subject of
my thesis was "The Legality and Benefits of the Protective Tariff"”. More than
mnty-fﬁe years later, and fifter retiring from Congress, I wrote a monograph
on the same subject where I clarify, and, I think, render more effective

posiiions which in the beginning were necessarily crude and undeisloped.
?.
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DECLINES PRESIDENCY OF THE EENT CLUB

It was the custom at the beginning of the senior year to elect a president
of the Kent Club, the office usually going to a momber who had been active
in debate or in promoting the club's interest. Greatly to my sum prise, I
was unanimously nominated and elected to the office.

After expressing my appreciation of the homor, I, in my turn, gave the
members a surprise by respectfully declining to f£ill the office. I told them
that I preferred the freedom of the floor to the dignity of the presiding
officer's chair,

Neither did I have any liking for the pringipal honor attached to the office,
nemely presiding and introdueing to the faculty and the undergraduate body of
the University, the helf dozen distinguished jurists and statesmen who delivered

each year these addresses. Formalities of this kind did not appeal to me.
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GETS RANK OF SIXTH IN CLASS

The ranking of the firsti five in the class at the Law School was based
cn the examination papers of the preceding year - and the honor students
were given cum laude degrees. I was entirely satisfied with being rated six
but was chided by one of my friends for toc much devotion to duck hunting.
This, he said, was the reason I was not rated higher. I went duck hunting
every Saturday, which necessitated my missing the recitation in criminel
law. As few of the students were interested in eriminal law and as Saturday
was, naturally, not a ponuler day for class room work, the nrofessor who had
the course had to hse a little ecﬂmion to prevent the class romm from being
empty. Accordingly , he was the ondy member of the faculty who took attendance
into consideration in determining his ratings. The result for me was not &
happy one. But I told my protesting friend that he should not overlock the
pleasure and exercise I had had on my hunting trips or how grateful some of
the men on the honor roll should be because I had cut the Saturday classes.

By something of a coincidence thirty-five years later, Theodore Roosevelt
and I received from Trinity College) in the same state, the honorary degree
of Dre. Sei. in recognition of work as field naturslists and conservators of
wild 1ife. Embossed on my parchment, in Latin terms, is approval of my long
advocacy of hunting wild 1ife with camera and flashlight. I heve often thought
since that while I perhaps lost a possible honor as a student by reason of my
devotion to the study of game the loss was more than compensated for by the
gain of a later degree in recognition of the persistence with which I had

pursued it.
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A COMPARISON OF DIRECT AND CIRCUMSTANTIAL EVIDENCE

I shell never forget my first experience in a trial court case, not only
because it wza my first effort, but alsovbecause of its interesting character.
On the occasion in question, Mr. Dickey asked me to assist him in a contest
over a probated will in which his clients a&lleged that the document had been
forged, thereby illegally depriving them of their share in their father's estate.
I felt dertain tkat lir, Dickey had generously called me into the case by way of
encouragement, And I deeply appreciated the opnortunity and responsibility.

The testator of the alleged will devised a valuable farm for life to a wife
by a second marriage, providing that on her death the property was to go to her
children, According to these terms, none of it would go to the childrem of the
first wife. The will when filed in the orphans court was in English and
purported toc have been signed by the testator, The sons of the first wife in
consulting with Mr, Dickey declared that their father was an sged German who
could not write English, nor, they maintained, was the signature attached te the
will that of their father., The widow when probating the will swore that it
had been found in an old family bible and that it wes in the handwriting of
her husbhand, Under the Pennsylvania law, two attesting witnesses were required,
but this had been construed to mean thet in the absence of such witnesses to
the will, twe others femiliar with the signature of the testator could be called
on to attest to the same. This was done by tire friends of the family.

Before the case was celled for trial, a number of experts on handwriting
were consulted and all agreed that the will could nrot have been written by en
aged Germen unadded by anyone, and moreover, that the handwriting evidently was
that of one under the age of sixteen, while the signature was not similar to those
on deeds and mortgates admittedly signed by the testator. A few days before
the case was celled in the Orphans Court, a jury trial was waived by agreement
of couneel, the presiding judge being authorized to hear the evidence and pass

upon the questions of fact and of law,
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Mr, Dickey was of the opinion that the circumstantial evidence in the case
was conclusive as to the forgery of the will, and he had no doubt that the cowrt
would have no difficulty in reaching the same conclusion. I agreed with my
colleague, but sald I thought it was our duty to find out who had forged the will.
To this desire riy associate offered no objection, but he thought I would not get
very far in this investigation as the case was to be called the next day.

I sent immediately for one of our clients and told him I thought the will
had been forged by the younger daughter of the widow., In view of the expert's
assurance that it had been written by a young person, she seemed to be the one
most likely to have done so under her mother's instructions. To this view the
step brothers agreed. To determine this if possible I asked to be supplied with
any writings of the one suspected, Late that evening one of the contesiants
called at my home, stating that he had been able %o find only an emvelope
addressed to him by his stepsister., Limited as was this writing, it further
eonfirmed my suspicions, for in the name of the addresseé, Gustavus Dice, the
capital 'D' of the surname corresponded exactly with the misuse of the same
capital in the word 'Death', used in the will. Both *D'B' were large, flourish-

1lcwed up, confirmed my conclusions

ing and 1den_t1ca1 in appem-am.e. This, wt

and practically ended the case at this jur

On our way to the court houre the next morning I told Mr. Dickey what I

suspected, but he protested against any attempt to drag this young woman into
the case saying that this imputation, if not established, would resct and might
spoil z perfectly good case. I called his attention to the fact that we were
not trying the issue before a jury and that the court would not resent any honest
effort on our part to prove who had forgsd the will, Therefore, I asked M r.
Dickey thai when the case was called he permit me to make the opening argument
end if I failed in my effort to show who the forger was, he could follow iV up
in the way he had criginally planned,

On addressins the court, I said that the plaintiff's counsel would make

no opening argument as the papers before the court indicated the issue, and
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scc;ordj.ngly we would call our first witnsss. Thereupon, I summoned to the stand
the young woman suspected as the guilty one while my colleague looked on with
misgivings., Haid@ing the witness a lead pencil and a tablet, I asked her to write
what I would dictate. Then, I read the will slowly without showing it to her.
When she had finished writing I looked at the paper, and to the surprise of the
counsel on either side I handed to the court this paper with the request that it
it be marksd *Exhibit A' end thet this would complete the plaintiff's case.

The court after reading the exhibit, asked to be furnished with the contested
will, After making s careful comparison of the two papers, during which he smiled
broadly, the gudge handed the same to the defendant's counsel, saying that with
the case closed for the plaintiff, he should proceed with the defense.

Thereupon, the defendant's counsel, an active practitioner for more than
25 years, examined the exhibit, It was evident to him that the will and copy
were duplicates in snelling, punctuation and the formation of the letters. As
the witness had not seen the originael will for a year and wrote it down at my
dictation without again seeing the same, it was evident to the most casual
observer that the forger of the will had just occupied the witness chair. The
defendant’s counsel told the court thet their side would offer no evidence in
rebuttal but would leave the case in the ccourt's hands for finel determination,

At this, the judge said that he was convinced that the will and register
had been forged and would file his opinion to that effect. That night the young
daughter, fearing prosecution for perjury or forgery, eloped with the hired
farmhand, fleeing %to an adjoining state. Her stepbrothers, however, would
not have prosecuted her knowing that she was dbut the youthful dune of an avaricous
mother. Here was a case vividly showing the difference that sometimes exists
in the character and value of direct and circumstantial evidence.

Twenty years later, I chanced to meet Judge Over who had presided at this
trigel, and he siad "I have never forgotten your first case that havpened to be

tried before me and in which you not only conclusively proved that an alleged
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will was forged, but also who had forged it."
I assured the judge that i greatly appreciated his present statement,
although I regretted that he had not told me this at an earlier datz when

encouragement was often needed by a youthful practitioner.
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"A PIG IRON STATE AND PIGMY smms:.’m"
Ay E A Brotest against the Eleetion of M.t. Quay as
United States Senator in 1887.

As the term of Senator Kitchell approached the close and not being &
oandida.%e to succeed himself, candidates appeared from various parts of the state.
Because the Demoecrats had elected their gubernatorial candidate in this Gibreltar
of Republicanism and because our respresentation in the Senate was week or unfit,
many Republicans hoped that the next semator would be a man of high character,
proved ability, end wide experience. However, they were doomed to disappointment
for without much effort, Matthew Stanley Quay, then f State Treasurer and a
relisble lieutenant in the Cameron dynasty, was chosen the party nominee at
the Republican caucus,.

This selection caused protest throughout the state and elsewhere. On the
morning of the day that the Legislature assembled in joint session to elect a
United States Senator, a pamphlet was laid on the desk of sach member. It
bitterly assailed the reputeiion and statesmanship of the one about to be
elected by the ballot of the members.

Upon the reading of the pamphlet, rmch confusion arose. One member declared
that he knew by its style that the attack had been written by a correspondent
of a New York paper. Others made random guesses as to its source or object.

I was the author of the pamphlet in question, and It was writien with no idea
that it would effect the slectien but as a protest egainst a candidate whom I
thought unfit for the position.

The references in this attack to Quay's speculation in Wall Street in
company with other state officials and the use of funds from the state treasury
to replace heavy losses in the stock market had previously been verified from
authoritative sources. Although the state lost nothing by reason of repayment
to the treasury by wealthy associates of the retiring treasurer, the charges
were too serious to warrant their suppression. The text of the pamphlet was as

follows:
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These charges were so serious that, published annonymously, they naturally
created deep resentment among Senator Quay's friends. At the same sime, while
the public was interested in the charges directed against the State Treasurer's
honesty, it was circulated about in certain circles that the feeling of the publie
wae that an unfeir attack had been made upon the incoming senater. Hany felt
that whetever might be his shortcomings, he should not heve been made the victim
of an annonymous attack.

I hed hed in mind from the inception of my plan to lay before the publie in
definite language these serious charges on the very day he was to be inducted
into his high office, this very situation. I had just as much dislike for
ennogymous attacks as the most meticulous observer of propriety, and the obser-
vance of the rule of conduct was to be met by my methods of procedure. I
assumsd, and rightly, that on the circulation of this pamphlet on the floor of
the Legislature and its reproduction throughout the press of the comntry, there
would come a challenge from the friends of Senator Juay that the one who had
been responsible for this devastating attack on tha character of the Senator
should make his name known or go down in history as s maligner of the most
despicable character.

These anticipated conclusions ferified my judgement and mads possible the
putting into effect of a plan that would settle for all time the question of the
guilt and innocence of the Senator and, thereby, perform a great public service
to the state and the nation. If my plans didn': miscarry, Senator Quay would
either be vindicated or the resulting disclosures would result in conviction
and a consequent retirement from the Senate.

To bring this about, I wrote a letter to state senator Rutan from Beaver,
Senator'Quay's home country, as follows:

"Dear Senator:
Since the publication of the 1litile pamphlet circulated in the Legislature
attacking Senator Juay on the day he was elected to the United States Senate,

I have noticed a vehement protest on your part against those responsible for
the circulation of this attack, charging that the falsity of this vicious
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attack was apparent to the Semator's friends and the public at large because
it was annonymity, the method of all vilifiers who did not dare make known
their true identities,

"As the writer of this pamphlet, I heartily agree with your condemmation,
even though it ignores the possible truth of the charges, because in the minds
of all fair-minded men, annonymous charges usually.carry their own condemmation.
In order to meet such a situation, I make the following propozition: That
uzon the disclosure of my name, Senator ‘(uay will agree to bring a libel
suit against me for a substantial amcunt, subject to the following conditions}
to wit, that in the trial of this case, he may be called for cross-examination
as an adverse witness and that my counsels have the right to subject the
plaintiff to such a cross-examination as is allowable when calling on
adverse witnesses.

In order to esteblish the good fdith of this propesition, I shall srrange
to deposit the sum of {10,000 or othersum that may be agreed upcn in order
to ensure his sxpenses and attorney fees. The belsnce, if any, should gc to
such a local charity as Senator umay may suggest; for I assume that in case
of this trial what he would seek: would be his vindication and not any
monetary sward in addition to this, Therefore, I wish, if this proposition
is accepted, that you cause to be published in the public press the fellowing
statement:

"It will be of interest to everyone to know that steps are being taken to
bring about the disclosure of the suthorship of the pamphlet rscently
attacking Senator wuay on the date of his induction as Senator,?!

sfrom such a statement I will understand that Senator (may accapts the
terms under which tkis disclosure is made. On the publieation of the suggested
statement or of one of similar import, you will receive a call from my
counsel, While not disclosing the name of his client during this first conver-
sation, my counsel will let it be known when I am satisfied that a binding
agreement has been entered into by Senator Quay to accept my challenge in
the manner suggested.”

For some days efter having written this letter and havfing definitely learned

that it had been examired, I searched the newspapers regularly. But I found no

response in the papsrs on this subject. Consequently, from that dey dowm to

the present, no one except mysslf and an intimate friend of mine who mailed the

eireulars to Harrisburg knows the inside history of this affair. Nor will anyone

ever know the true facts unless someday there is published in my biography a

history of this affair,
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£ BECOMES A CANDIDATE FOR THE LEGISLATURE e

Erprddy ﬁ’f/;
In the spring of 1888, after practicing law for about four years, I came ‘

to the conelusion, after careful consideration, that it would prove an agreeable

and instruective experience to serve as a member of the L egislature for a term.

I felt that a period of service in the House, where I might become familiar

with law making and the activities of the Department would, provided that I

went there with the intention of doing seriocus work and making the most of my

brief opportunity, be of great subsequent benefit in the practice of law. L

t
would mesn building vp an acquaintance, both legal and politiecal, throughcut
the state. I also believed that the commitiee work and the opportunity of

following and perticipating in the discussions of) the floor would familiarize

me with the State Constitution and the public problems of the hour. What I had

in miné was, therefore, in harmony with my purpose to cdntinue the practice of
the lew without intermission. I had no intention of again seeking public officé
or of following any other course that would divert me fror-::é?%‘en profession,
The perty primaries were to be held a couple of months after I had decided
t0 becams a candidate. I lived in the first of the two legislative districts in |
the city of Allegheny, now the northside of Pittsburgh. All the wards, with
one exception, lay east of Federal street and were controlled by voters of German |
extraction, among whom I had but slight acquaintance,
Preparihg to make a start, I consulted with my uncle, Major W.M. Kennedy,
a resident of one of the most populous wards in the distriet, who had beer a factor

in local politics for & long time. 48 other candidates had covered the field

BEOS T T B D

pretty thoroughly, he was of the opinion that I had waited tco long and that I
would, by reason of the lafe start, be badly handicapped. Before I took any
definite s¢ép, he advised me to call on Pete Walters, a leading and influential

Germen. Fete Walters was the proprieter of a drug store on a street dividing |
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the two largest wards and had been for many years an adviser to those having
political ambitions,.

Walters shared Major Kennedy's view that I was too late in announcing my
candidacy, particularly as two candidates, Rébiscn and Staving, had combined on
delegates and had already done so much work among the voters that they felt
confident of nomination. The kindly old druggist, however, apparently not wishing
to discourage me any further, told me he was committed to only one of these
candidates. TFurthermore, he stated, thart:i would make a cofibination with the
man to whon he had premised support, I could, in his opinions, win the conteat.

Replying to his outline of the situation, I snsid I thought too many
campaigns were begun too soon and that effective work, after a late entry, would
more than offset any possible advantage resulting from an early stert. I also
voiced objection to any effort to break up the Robison-Staving combination, saying
thet if there were to be any overtures to this end, they might, in my opinion,
better come to instead of from me.

I urged these views on my advisers witn success. 4nd they sgreed to help
set up a complete slate of delegates, leaving the choice of the second cendidate
to be noninated to later consideration., The events justified the wiew I urged
on them, for I received, after my delegates wers announced, an offer from each
of the two candidstes to join him &= his rumning mate,

But this only raised another sericus problem. The Germans in the distriet,
camprising a large majority of the voters, hed for years been indignant over
the terms of the existing license law which had immosed higher license fees and
reduced the number of licenses that could be granted. Ax in the previous
bhenniul election, the Democrats, with two Cerman candidates, had swept the
district, I was sirongly advised to throw in my lot with Staving, a county office |

holder and influentiel among his fellow Germans; but I preferred Robison.

He was well educated, a good campaigner, and a genicl fellow, The likelihood

that he would make a better legislator than Staving mecuh sppealed to me. I had
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long observed that the legislators from ithe large cities like Pittsburgh and
Philadelphia were infinitely inferior in mind and cheracter to those representing
the rurel districts. There was the additional consideration that they were
largely controlled by the city or state rings, It seemed my duty to teesm up

with Robison regardless of the consequences, and this I did. Fortunately for us
and the success of the party in the district, the situation was simplified before
the primaries by Staving's withdrawal. Thus, Robison and I went into the eldetion
with a fairly united organization behind us.

As the Democrats had again nominated two Germens, it was predicted on all
sides that we would have a hard fight, with the chances of success none too good.
But I pelieved that the fact that it was a presidential yemr, with Harrison
and Morton the Republican nominees, would count strongly in our favor. The voters
were nominally Republicans and in a national election would not be likely to
cut their local candidates.

The cenvass was 1fgoroualy undertaken by myself and colleagueg. Daily,
we made political addressssin the various wards, while about once a week, there
was an old-fashioned iorchlight procession composed of our local suovnorters.

The procession carried plenty of red fire, and the astute Major Rush Tyler,
a veteran of the Civil War and a most capable campaigner, was in command,

During the contest, the Pittsburgh ring looked askance at our candidacy;
for it was the custom to control the entire county delegation. However, as
it was known that I was mlso arfi- uay, the arch enemy of the local bosses,
we were permitied to go shead withcout interference,

The forebodings of those fesrful of defeat proved groundless. Ve were
elected by 1,800 majority, simost an exact reversal of the Democratic majority

iwo years before.
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A POLITICAL STCRY

A few days after my election to the Legislature, the Round Table and some
additionsl friends gave a dimner in my honor. The toastmaster of the occasion
was a college roommate and felt privileged to say anything he wished about my
political endeavors. He told how a few days before he had met Mr, L.-- ons of
the defeated Democratée candidates and asked him how it was that he had been so
badly worsied when only two years before ke had been so successful,

"Thai is easy tc explain", said the disgruntled candidate, "for when
Shiras end his friends went into the Cerman wards, it was pointed out that his
great grandfather in 1800 had built the first brewery in Allegheny County.
Thereupon, the Germans flocked to his support.

"Then the scme campaigners went intc the Presbyterian wards at the other
end of the district and told how ancther great grandfather of the candidatq)
in 18&9 founded the Flxst Presbyterian Church, serving as its pastor for Sb
consecutive years, This turned the religious element sgainst the beer-loving
Cermen cundidates.”

He concluded by saying sadly, "Not letting your rikht hand know what your
left hand did made it possible to carry a beer bottle one day and a Bible the
next. You can't beat such a combination.

This story created much merriment at the table, but the victim declared
that the tsle resulted from an overstretch of the imeginetion on thc part of

the defeated candidate.
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L THE LEGISLATURE AS A PODITICAL TRATNING SCHOOL AMD ITS PERSCINEL

In government each State is a miniature of the United States, For each is.
defined in its territory, is a sovereign in domesiic matters, and otherwise
resembles the nation of which it is a component part. e states have a chiefl
executive with cabinet officers or other State officials correspending thereto. .
It hes a supreme court and subordinate judiclary, = legislature composed of
a house and senate, and a territory divided into counties that bear the same
pelation to the ccmmonwealth that the states bear to the national government. 1
®ach State sends its allotted members to the national legislature, while the
general govermment gllots to each State, members of the Federal judiciary and :
other officisls connected with the executive department, such es district attornsys,"
marshals, revenus collectors, postmasters, etc, Thus, we heve forty-eizht states
complete in their governmental functions and a nation equally complete in its
functiongl.

Before going to the stete capitol in 1889, I was thopvoughly impressed with
the feeling that the average state legislature was an azsembly of politicians
or men of mediocre ability and that, ccllectively, they represen ted a rather
low stratum in public life with the result of misgovernmment or extrevegence in
the menagement of state affairs. These views were unduly influenced by the
general character of the memiers moming from the two large citiss at either end
of the state and by the tendency of the daily press to magnify all that was
reprebensible in the legislature and to largely ignore the every day work of
this body and the feithful discharge of the many duties imposed upenf trose
active in committee work or in the orderly menagement of the affairs of a great
state.

.While I had some uncomfortable or disconcerting experiences as evidenced by
the bank bills, the grade-crossing bill, and the attempted impeachment of a county

judge, I was able to see in a very short time that the ecalibre of the members

v
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was of a high order. Aside from political eutomatons from the larger cities who
ereated a vacuum rather than a forece for evil, the members from the amall towns and
country districts were honest, able, and gennerally congenial, This group was
made up of lawyers, former judges, bankers, merchants, physicians, and educated
farmers. VWhile such men as these, constituting a mejority of the body, were
susceptible to the cunning mancevédrs of the state bosses or the insidious presure
of powerful corporations, I found that shenever an issue affecting the publiec
welfare wes properly called to their attention, these men would promptly break

away from unwise leadcfship or would defy political coercion,.

As the legislature of Pennsylvania hed long veen depicted as an unscrupuious
and an inefficient branch of the zovermment, I have little doubt that the leg-
islatures of other states have been equally maligned., Nearly half of our United
States Senctors, Bongressmen, and meny Federal Judges, governors and similar
high officials have served in the state legislatures. Ths training and ths
prestige vhich ekiwiwmedrc they obtained there largely accounts for their subsejuent
successful careersa. A number of Presidents have seen service in the legislstures,
1; Garfield and Theodore Rocsevelt among others. In later years, their caresrs
.‘Fare mueh: influenced ty their early entry into public life. Ix-~Governor Alfred

E, Smibk, Democratic candidate for President in 1928, acauired mich of his

political fame as a legislator in his home state,

Memoirs_Box1_Folder12_152.tif




L e £ . ot
) f@i«,} '( .l}

Some Pank Legislation with-StrengeSequelse

Refore the session apened I had baan entrusted with ths presentment
of two bills prepllred by romer Chi.et Justice !\gnew and desiped by ‘the
Bank of Pittsburgh, one of the most Tsamous stete institutions throughout
the country, it having tecn orgenized 1n 1810, - The purboae of one
measure was to permit the renewal of etate bank chﬂrters, the former
stetute thereon heving expired under a time limitetion, snd the other
pernitted & state bank to beccme = nationsl benk without ecessation of
business and liquidation. without t.hsl pessage of the first bill the
Bank of Pittsburgh could not continue and should the second bill become
e lew this bank could teke advsntege of it latexr on, if it seemed
desirsble. ©On ny iniroduction of these mensures they were referred
by the spesier to the Comalttee on Banks of whieh I wes vice-chalman.
After | had explained to the committee the purposes of this legislation
the two bills were reported out affirmstively, end went on the
cal}'sndsr. on the f£irst snd second reading of the bllls no objection
was mede to them and 1% sgemed they would pass on third snd f£inel reading
without any trouble.

Before final passage nowever I peceived a telcgren fron Horquette
Miechigen my summcr heme announcing the arrival of o son snd I ieft that
evening for the “est. he two benk bills on third resding were called
up during ay gbsence when objections were mede by 2 Philedelphia members
This eritic had not proceeded Very fer when he was interrupted by
John Few the minority jeader of the House who in stentorian tones

which had previously led te his being named "noghorn” poctested egainst
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any attack on these m ssures during the absence of thelr author who

had been called awsy to greet the arrival of Ceorge the 4th. In
conclusion he expressed e hope that not o single vote would be cast
ageinst this legislstion in view of the clrcum tances. Thereupon

the objector sat down end with the rest of the House rccorded a unanimous
vote for the passmge of the measures. iearing ebout this later, I

felt that my sbsence had been more eloquent then my presencee.
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A few dsys after the two bank bllls were sent to the Senate, and

A Deadlock On The Bank Bills,

referred to the appropriate uamitm s denator leﬁynr of Allegheny
County celled on me ir the House., He then asked me whet hed become

of his bank bill providing for the pumishment of bank officisls who
received deposits a’ter tho bank was known to be ‘nsolvent? I told
him that this senate blll had been referrsd to the Committee on Banks
et the time I wes acting chairman snd thst In the opinion of the
cormittee the bill =mas & dangerous one ms it did not s ccuretely define
whet constituted insolvency, and moreover it was unconstitutional in whole
or in part becsuse it atiempi d Co regulate nationsl s- well as state
benks. As the senator had not asked for = hearing before the coamuittes,
end in view of our united belief that such leglslation should not
receive ¢ favoreble report, I reported it out with s negative recommenw
dation. "vell," remsried the senctor gruffly,"I will tell you what is
going to happen tomorrow morning." "'het is that?” I asked serenely.
"/t the morning session” he ssld "You will rise in your plsce end ask
the speaker %o refer this bill back to the Cormittes on Banks for
further consideration”.  Ruffled by this assertion 1 made it plesin that
I would do nothing of the kind, "0Oh, yes you will snd I have the means
of foreing this sction." "Yon Have”, he eontinued two bank bills before
the senate committee of which I s a member and there thev will remain
until you heve my b1ll referred back to vour committee and later
reported out favorsably.” HNuch surprised by thisz threat snd 1ts
unfortunatc consecquences if corried out, I adopted o conclliatory tone
and pointed ont the’ the 1life of one of the oldest banks in the state

would be ended snd other§would be in the same fix a yesr or two
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y et SERVICE IN PENHSYLVANIA LEGISLATURE

THE LEGISLATURE CONVENES

A few days before leaving for Harrisburg, I received a te note from the
general passenger agent of the Pennsylvania railroad stating that his company
took pleasure in issuing an annual pass for my use and asking that I call and
receipt for it.

I was aware of the powerful influence that this road had exerted on the
Legislature and of the success it had met with in getting what it wanted and in
defeating any legislation inimical to its interests. For this and other reasons,
I decided not to accept the pass., On the day of my departure, I received a
registered letter. When I opened it, I learned that I had unwittingly rouq':tod
for a Pennsylvania pass. When I showed it to my father, he took a pencil
end ran a line through the prefix "Hon!', saying that if I were going to use it,
the adjective was inconsistent with my attitude toward my public duties. I
returned the pass and, as will be related later, soon had occasion to be glad
thet I had done so.

On reaching the capital, I took a room for the session at the Lochiel House,
a famous old hostekry patronized by the more active me-bers of the Legislature and
state officials. Consequently, it was the headquarters for important politiecal
conferences. I was asked by the Speaker of the House, Fenry K. Boyer, to
oceupy a chair at his table, where in addition to Harry Huhn, the parliamentary
elerk, th ware several prominent members. Daily contact with this group
=ubated me Lo cbain information as to my future dutl.uj which I could have
obtained in no other manner.

The Speaker was a man of unusual attainments. e was tell, well built, and
digniﬁ.ed? with a personality that xxm won the friendship and confidence of all
the members, regardless of party lines. As a parliamentarian, he had few equals,
partly the result of having presided over previous sessions,.

After his installation in the house o” which I was a member, he asked the

members to indicate their preferences for committee assignments, I had realized
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from the outset the importance of getting on committees that would have congenial
work to do and that had some importance. As I was free from entangling alliances
and had nof ambitions to continue in public office, I was interested only in the
ppportunity to do some worthwhile work, My first choice was the judiciary general
committee, composed almost entirely of lawyers, including the majority leader.
To this committee bills of importance that posai‘by required amendment and measures
of doubtful constitutionality were referred. Akthough I was a new member, I was
appointed to it, an honor due in large part to the fact that no one else from
the big delegation from Allegheny county had asked for a place on it.

I then asked the Speaker to place me on the committee on banks. He smiled
broadly at my request, saying that this committee rarely met and that in some
sessions it failed to assemble for even a single meeting. That would not be the
case in this session, I assured him, as I hed two important banking measures
which I propeed to introduce; these would naturally be referred to the committee
on banks, Accordingly, he appointed me the ranking member with the power %to call
the committee together in the absenc@ of the chairman., Two minor emnitteea,
Ceclogical Survey and Federal Relations, the latter of which I was made chairman,

completed my assignments,
FRIENDLY TREATMENT BY THE LEADERS

The friendly attitude of the Speaker and his close associates could be
accounted for partly by the fact that I and my colleagues became candidates
for the Legislature without the consent or endorsement of Magee and Flynn who
had long been the bosses of Allegheny County. This was the only section of the
state not under the political control of Senator Quay. The feud between these
two groups had existed for years, but Semator Quay with all his influence and
prestige was unable to oust this powerful local machine. It was quite natural,
therefore, that in Harrisburg where Quay was supreme in all legislative matters,
I might properly be regarded as pro Quay or at least friendly to the Quay
organization,

It was not then known that I was the author of the annonymous pamphlet

. PR o T T Fht.Tl T e PR A PR PR T T T T L Tt AL BT e
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"The Pig Iron State Iand Pigmy Statesmen” in which Senator Quay was dirﬁetly charged
with speculating and losing a large sum in the State Treasury over which he
presided. Had this fact become known, I would have been on the black list,

and the courtesy shown me mentioned bafore, would have been emphatically denied

GETS A SURPRISE

A few days after the convening of the Legislature, I was seated at my
desk writing a letter. Suddenly I became aware of an unusual silence in the
Chamber broken by a member opposite me calling my nsme while another member in
the rear pounded on my back. Looking up I saw the Speaker standing erect with
his gavel poised in the air and looking intently in my direction. Then the pre-
siding of ficer rmpmxtxw repeated what he had evidently said before: "The
gentleman for Allegheny will please take the chair.”

This request came as a shock, for although not subject to stage fright, I
had no liking for the formal duties of a presiding officer, as previously indicated
when I declined the presidency of the Yale Kent Club. Pulling myself together,
InMdmmmlemghmutmglmm“twmsms
leading to the Speaker's chair. With a dignified bow, he handed me the gavel,
and I made an avkward curtsy in return.

Gazing out over the sea of faces where many were wondering who in thunder
had taken the chair, I shouted, "The House will please come *to order,"” though
you could hear a pin drop so orderly was the body at that moment. [Boking to one
side of the chair where the parliamentary clerk was ususlly concealed and in a
position to prompt the Speaker on matters involving the rules or practices of the
House, I found this useful person absent. A moment later, I was attracted by a
member rising and asking for recognition. Not knowing either his name or the
county he represented, I told him to prodeed, whereupon he read the title of a

bill he was then introducing, snd the measure was taken to the Chair by a page.
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At that moment I heard a slight noise to my right and there saw the smiling
countenance of Harry Huhn, the Speaker's clerk and one of my daily companions
at the dinner table.

I whispered to him, "What in the world am I to do with this confounded paper?"”
He whispered back that I should read the title of the bill aloud and refer it
to its appropriate committee, which in this instance, I had no trouble in determin-
ing. Thereafter, all went smoothly., Nevertheless, I was greatly pleased to see
the Speaker approaching. As he took his place, he whispered, "You might have

done worse, for we were giving you the third degree."

Memoirs_Box1_Folder12_161.tif



(o printc) ik

SAFEGUARD AGAINST HASTY LEGISLATION

In Pennsylvania and many other states, the consideration or enazctment of
legislation is so safeguarded that no member can ever assert that bills were
called up or enacted into law without having due notice. Under the state
constitution, when measures are first introduced, the titde is first read by the
member introducing the bill and reed again by the Speaker when he announces the
committee to which it has been referred. When reported out favorably, it is
placed on the calendar and must be read at length three times on three seperate
‘days. On the second reading, it msy be smended. On the third resding it comes
up for final consideration and may be defeated or passed by a majority vote,
although emendments may be made by going into the Gommittee of the Whole.
Moreover, the proposed legislation must related to only one subject, while
the title of the bill must clearly indiecate its purposes. This procedure is
in striking contrast to xkXx the slipshod and careless manner in which Congréss

legislates as pointed out later.

Detection of the "Grade Crossing™ Monstrosity

There was one bill, however, that did not attract attention until it was
called up in the House for second reading on February 14, 1889. It had a
deliberately misleading title as folless: "A bill to insure public safety by
regulating grade crossings in cities of the first and second class."” This measure
being limited to Philadelpnia and Pittsburgh was of concern to comparatively few
members., Moreover, it was in line with the efforts to do away with the many
casualties at railroad crossings in the larger cities; theréfore, it was accepted,
at its face value, as a wise measure,

When the bill was ¢alled up, I happened to read its provisions because the
eity of Allegheny that I represented in part was soon likely to be consolidated
with Pittsburgh., It would, thereby, come within the scope of the proposed

regulation, I discofered almost immediately that the measure should have been
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entitled, "A bill to prevent the entry of new railroads into cities of the first
and second class.,” For the bill contained a section exempting existing railroads
from the other provisions of the act. At the same time, it required new railroads
seeking entry into these cities to elevate their tracks at the municipal boundaries
for a distance of ten or fifteen miles, at an enormous cost. Furthermore the
bill did not give to the new systems terminal facilities within the business
portion of the town. Thus, it effectually barred competitive lines in the future.
This scheme was a good illustration of corporation control of the Legislature
and of an attempted deception by a cunningly devised and apparently harmless
title. The immediate beneficiaries of the act would have been the Pemnsylvania,
the Reading, the Pittsburgh and Iahs?-lt’;‘:uanﬂ the Baltimore and Ohio Railroads;
the last one , by the way, was represented by my firm as @eneral Counsel
in western Pennsylvania Except for the first road mentioned, the other lines

were inactive in promoting the measure at Harrisburg.
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Defeat of the Grade Crossing Monstrosity.

House Bill, No. 52, was considered the greatest corporation
grab of the session. Owing largely to the coumgeous speeches and
effective work of Mr. Shiras, the taxpayers o Pittsburgh, Alle-
gheny and Philadelphia have been saved millions of dollars, and
their communities freed from a measure that made new railroad
enterprises an impossibility. Neither threats directed against his
own bills or spacious pleas deterred him from doing his duty in the
hour when the public slept and the enemy occupied every post.
The following communication from one of the county’'s reliable and
zealous citizens bears testimony to the narrow escape the county
had from first being robbed and then imprisoned:

John Hood, Esq., Member of the Feed and Flour Exchange.

“As a member of the Joint Committee from the Chamber of
Commerce and the Feed and Flour Exchange, sent to Harrisburg to
assist in the defeat of House Bill No. 52, I take great pleasure in
having an opportunity to say a few words in commendation of Mr.
Shiras’ valuable service while a representative at Harrisburg. Ac-
customed as I am to notice all movements that have had any bear-
ing on the commerce of our City and State, I became interested in
House Bill No. 52, purporting to be for the ‘protection of life and
property in cities of the first and second class.” This measure was
in fact, a scheme to %revem the building of any more rival roads
in the State. and further, to compel the cities to spend millions in
the behalf of existing corporations. In the language of the Phila-
delphia Board of Trade it would ‘as a law deny all new railroad
companies practicable access to the cities of ~ Philadelphia and
Pittsburgh, and the bill should be entitled a law to forbid com-
petition with established roads.”™

“It provided that the cost of constructing the necessary under-
grade or overgrade crossings ‘should be equally divided between
the railroads and the city,’” and that the cons uential damages be
summarily divided—which might cost MILLIONS OF DOLLARS
IN TAXES. New roads were to pay all expenses, and besides be
denied necessary terminal facilities.’

Mr. Shiras, with the honest convictions that the Shiras family
possess, and with the keen appreciation of the great injury the
bill would inflict upon his constituents, as well upon the whole
State, sounded the alarm the instant the nature of the billl was
detected. The cunning deception and gross injustice of the biNl
fired his indignation, prompting him to a vigorous fight against
the measure from its discovery to the final defeat in the Senate by
one majority. While Mr. Shiras was not opposed to the prompt
abolition of all dangerous grade cmsinfs. but heartly in favor of
the same, he regarded the text of this bill proposing the same as a
mere screen for a measure gotten up and fostered entirely by and
for corporation purposes. After Mr. Shiras’ bitter denunciation of
the bill on the floor of the House (and he alone spoke inst it
on final passage), the six large commercial exchanges in iladel-
nhia and. the two in our city became aroused to the dangers that
threatened the community. All passed resolutions condemning the
bill and were seconded by similar resolutions from the Select and
Common Councils of the City of Allegheny, therein the City’'s Rep-
resentatives were requested to vote against any features of the bill
nending ‘that would in any way curtail the powers now possessed
by the city or in any manner impose any cost upon the city ir

_— il —

changing existing grades, without the assent of the city.” Com-
mittees from all these exchanges visited Harrisburg, an by their
united efforts, the ;i)ressure became too strong and the bill failed
of becoming a law by just one vote. Mr. Shiras’ vigorous efforts
against the measure won the confidence of the large eastern dele-

tions, and his zeal and faithfulness were so appreciated, that
urinf the whole struggle they manifested more confidence in him
than in their own representatives. His independence, cou e and
ability were qualities needed then, and should be acceptable to
even a large constituency now.

“JOHN HOOD."
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A PROPOSED ILLEGAL ACT AND ITS FINAL
ENACTMENT IN THAT FORM

Illustrating some of the devious methods in legislation, I hawve another
example in mind, much more flagrant in its deceptive form that the grade crossing
bill. Early in the session, Mr. Emmanuel Wertheimer, a wealthy distiller,
residing in my district, called upon me and asked whether I would intreduce a
bill permitting the incorporation of distilleries, saying that in this mission
he represented these interests throughout the state. Although brewing companies
could be incorporated, he pointed out that distilling companies with a much larger
capital were not permitted to have this advantage. In case of death, insolvency
or withdrawal of a member of a firm, he showed that reorginization was necessary
while the issuing of securities and the incurring of contractual obligations
were greatly impaired.

I told him I could see no good reason why distilling companies should not
hage the privilege of incorporating, particularly as the brewing interests
enjoyed it. I asked that I be shown a copy of the proposed bill amendings the
general corporation aect. I found on examing it that the title was vitally defective
in that it did not show the nature of the amendment, while the body of the bill
contained only the proposed amended section. This departed from the usual
practice of setting forth the section as unamended followed by the new section
containing the changes in italicized form, so that the members would kmow just
what changes were proposed. I informed ''r. Wertheimer that I would not sponsor
the bill unless it conformed to the constitutional requirements. He surprised me
by saying that the bill could not be passed in sny form other than the one proposed
because it would arouse unnecessary antagonism., As I stood on my position, the
proposed legislation was dropped for that session,

Two years later, Vr. Wertheimer was elected to the Legislature from Allegheny

County. Almost immediately, he introduced the bill in the form in which it had
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been presented to me. is a result of some skillful manoeuvering under the
guidance of the state organization, it became a law and remained on the statube
books until the adoption of the Zighteenth Amendment to the Federal Comstitution,
all the great distilling interests taking advamtace of its provisions.

In conseguence, for nearly thirty years, tens of millions of dollars were
represented by capital stock illegally issued, but few seemed to be aware of
the condition. The question of the legality of the act was never raised in the
courts, where it would have been promptly overthrown as in plain and intentional

contravention of several fundamental provisions of the state constitution.
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EXPRESSIONS OF GOOD WILL BY THE AUTHOR'S
COLLEAGUES ON THE JUDICIARY GENERAL COMMITTEE
The year following the conclusion of my brief term of service in the Legislature,
I was unexpectedly forced into a campaign for the Republican nomination to Congress.
Regardless of party affiliations, all my fellow members on the Judiciary Committee
endorsed, in written form, my candidacy. This was a most unusual proceeding 4n a
contest between candidates at a primary election., These endorsement are published
here, not becuase they are commendatory from a personal point of view, but
because thepe expressions of good will seem to indicate that the duties imposed
onme in the Leglslature had been satisfactorily performed. Therefore, they

constitute a part of this record.

‘e : Wilrcar o BG
Gicm - ey
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£y ﬂw AIGT AGATNST COL. BAMNE Gl Mm
P FC!’! ENTERDNG THE CONTEST
When the time approached for the biennial primaries, I declared that I would
not again be a candidate far the legislature. This statement was made as a
cénfirmation of my earlier declaration that I would serve but one term in the

state Legislature. This simple notice occasioned a series of incidents which

many people would have regarded as of no great importance. They were, however,
destined to shape much of my subssequent career.

The publication of the story that I would not be a camdidate was
commented on by poditical friends of Judge White as evidence that because of
their influence with the voters, I was afraid to run aguin. I knew that
Judge White was not responsible for these assertions for reasons already given.
But in view of the fact that I had suppressed much damaging evidence affecting
the accused jurist, which had been unearthed on my return to Pittsburgh, I was
greatly tempted to enter the field to make clear that I was willing to meet the
issue.

While deciding what might best be done, I conceived the idea of showing my

standing with my constituénts by what would have all the earmarks of a bonafide
candidacy for Congress against Col. Thomas M. Bayne, Col. Bayne, after his 18
years of service in the House had won a high position in his party, both in W

ing ton and at home. The time was, as a matter of fact, much too brief to give
me a fau; opportunity for a successful campaign against Bayne, even if I coidld
have defeated him under any circumstances., However, I hoped that by setting up
delegates in my legislative déstrict and securing their eleetion by a substantial
majority to make it clear for all time that I could have had a second term in the

Legislature if I had wanted it.

THE CONTEST IN THE REPUBLICAN PRIMARIES AGAINST COL. BAYNE
The twanty-third Congpessional Distric$,changed lately to the twenty-ninth,

was composed of the City of Allegheny and all the boroughs and townships north
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of the Ohio River, containing = population of about 200,000, The majority of
the voters resided in Allegheny., Consequently, this group dominated in the number
of delegates to the Congressional Convention which was composed of about 140
members.

As the first step in my plan, I consulted with Major Kennedy who nreviously
had had charge of my candidacy for the Legislature. He was much surprised at my
motives but goodnaturedly gave way to my plan. It required but little tire to
select the delegates in the first legislative district, for most of them had
represented me in the other contest. In a dgy or two, it became known that I
had entered the Congressional primaries against Colonel Bay ne, but no one excent
intimate friends kmew my purpose. As Colonel Bayne had only once before been
opposed for the nomiration, the newspapers devoted considerable space to this
unexpected development.

The Commercial GCazette, for fifty years the Republiean organ in TWestern
Pennsylvania, and a paper of commanding influence, announced that it would support
Colonel Bayne in every possible way. The paper stated thet it would regard the
defeest of this Congressman toward the end of his brilliant career as a great
calamity. One small paper of limited circulation was equally emphatic in my
support. BHut the other papers were neutral and neither candidate ccnld ccmplain
of not getting fair treatment from these latter papers.

£s I expected, the gfeet majority of the manufacturers and corporations,
the farmers in the rursl districta and the Civil ¥ar veterans gave slmost
unqualified support to my opoonent, This, however, did not distmpb me, as my
campaign for delegates in the first legislative distriet would not be rmch influenced
by the elements going %o Bayne,

Then strange things began to happen. From all over the district came
assurances cf much popular support, composed of the younger Republican element
with a large number of local politicians who, for one reason or another, were on
unfriendly terms with the old-time Congressman who incurred, as is so often the

case, the emmity of disappointed office holde®s and their friends., It was not
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until James G. Wyman, Mayor of Allegheny, announced that he and his

administration would do everything possible for me that coherence was given to

the oppoaition. For Wyman was regarded as the most powerful and suecessful

leader in his city, expecially was he the controlling forece in the party primaries.
This was followed by an announcement from the Allegheny River Improvement

Association that every member in its ranks would oppose the nomination of Colonel

Bayne, whom they charged with an habitual neglect of thei- interests, Thus, it

will be seen that many of my unexpected supporters belonged to a class that did not

love me more, but Bayne less. The upshot &f it all was that three weeks before

the primaries, a number of disinterested leaders declar&d that in all probability

I could defeat Bayne. Thereupon, I was forced, with =ome reluctance, to set up

delegates in every voting precinct in the distriet. Otherwise, I would be

disregarding the wishes of many friends in addition to mskins it apparent that

I was not a bona fide csndidate, a faet which I had hoped to conceal at the

beginning of my campaign.
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Selecting a Delegate in the oY L2 ‘/

In selecting the delegat’es in my home ward I had little
difficulty exeept in the third precinet, known as "the rolling
mill district.” Here the votrts were numercus, but the personal
popularity of the delegate was more important than that of the
candidate he represented.

I wes advised to sse the superintendent of a lead works
a few squares from my house., Meeting him one evening at his
office, the matter was taken up and he strongly a&vised the
selection of one William Kelly, who, he said, had never been
defeated in a primary election. While he was extolling Kelly's
merits my adviser stopped in the middle of a sentence, his jaw
fell and his eyes closed. A moment later he fell in a heap
on the floor.

Greatly alarmed I sought assistance. On going into the hallway
I saw a light beneath the opnosite door and could hear a typewriter
elicking in the room. Rapping on the door, I was at once
confronted by a tall, thin and elderly female to whom I spoke
of the superintendent's sudden illness, pointing to the fallen
figure in the rcom ascross the corridor.

Without a word she returned with me, went to a closet and
came out with a large dark bottle, which she shook vigorously.
Then with great deliberation she removed the cork anéd approached
the prostrate form. With her left hand she raised the head,
and placed the mouth of the bottle to the lips. A gurgling
sound was almost immediately followed by signs of returning

consciousness, This mysterious femalethen returned the bottle
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COLONEL STONE COMES TC THE FRONT

A A wesk preceding the primaries, everything was running smoothly, and I had
fair hopes of success, unexpected as it was. Then e¢sme another change in politiecal
eurrents, for I recieved an unexpected message from Colonel William A. Stone
stating that he would like to talk over the political situation fmzxmmx with me.
Up to this time, Colonel Stone, & former U.S. Distriet Attorney and the
head of the traction interests in Allegheny had, with his many politiezl associates,
remained neutral in this contest. For several years, Stone was regarded as one
who desired toc succeed Colonel Bayne but apparently feared to cross swords with
such a powerful opponent, [e was patiently waiting a break of some sort that
would give him a chance, Therefore, I tried to guess the object of the visit.
Stone opened the interview with the statemsnt that he understood that I

would not be a cn-didate again for Congress in case I were nominated and electzd,
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to the closet, made a curt bow and retreated, closing the door after
her. I wondered then, and have ever since, at her apparently
inserutable conduct.

Meanwhile my adviser had gathered himself up, again taken his
seat, and was brushing off his clothes with a handkerchief, offering
no explanation for what had happened, nor displaying any embarass=-
ment, "As I said before", he continued where he had abruptly
left off, "William Kelly is the man for you to select.”

I hﬁstsned to assure him that I would get William Kelly if I
had to adopt him into the family, and saying something about my
wife not liking to have me stay "out after dark", or with some
such excuse, I left much more rapidly than I had come. Reaching
the street, I concluded that the superintendent knew & great deal
gbout delegates, but that he had peculiarities not to my liking.

So this was my first and only interview with him.
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I told him that such was my resolve. He then asked if I would pledge my word
to him that I would not run again., If I did this and agreed to support him as
my successor, he stated that he and all his friends would support my candidacy
and, thus, ensure my election.

I told him rather curtly that I could neithsr pkedge myself not to run
again nor to support him at the end of my term., In explaining this, I told him
that my refussl to run agein was made known to the publie and not secretdy
to any individual. Moreover, I asserted that I could not agree to support him
on my retirement from Congress because I believed my successor should be chosen
by the Republican voters and not by eny special influence I might possess in
retiring from this office.

This attitude seemed to surprise my visitor, and he left in apparent
disappeintment. Two days later came the announcement in the press that Coélonel
Stone and his friends had come outstrongly for Bayme. *t was not until later
that I learned how the change had been brought about. it first I merely
concluded that this ambitious gentleman concluded that he had a better chance
to succeed Bayne in the near future than a younger candidete who might wish to
continue on in the office indefinitely.

Then came another switch. Definite word was received at my headquarters
that Mayor Wyman and his administration had agreed to rem=in neutral in the
primaries. As many of my delegates in the City of Allezheny had either been
put up by the Mayor or were receiving his ardent support, it required many

chenges in the delegates and much conseguent friction,
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HAD TO GIVE UP HIS STOLEN COAT

Notwithstanding the action of the mass mceting, the utterances of leading
eitizens, and a press united in its condemmation of Stone's dishonorable conduct,
the latter refused to give up the nomination, saying that he had gotten the
nomination fairly and was not to be influenced by the ill-tempered criticism
of his political enemies.

Thereupon, n petition was circulated requesting the Republican County
Comittee to call a special meeting for the purpose of declaring Stone's
nomination illegal and to call a new primary election to select a Congressional
candidate. Pending the meeting and action of the County Committee, I went
to my summer home on Leke Superior for a short stay. This gave me a much needed
chance to rest and to dedide upon my course should a new primary be held.

When Stone learned suthoritatively that the County Committee was practically
unanimous in finding the nomination illegal, he made the best of a bad situation
by giving up the nomination and stating he would be » candidate at the primaries
when called. While personally very much opposed to going into another contest,
I realized that the request of my friends could not be lightly ignored.
Moreover, I felt it was my duty to lead in a n effort to punish those
politicians who had so flagrantly betrayed their party.

By this time, I knew full well the nature of the ensuing contest and that
I should have arrayed against me a vast sum of money on tne part of those
trying to save themselves from political extinction and a verdiet of over-
whelming condermeation. To avert this end, in addition to lavish expenditures
there would be brought into play every politieal brick and every form of
coercion likely to save the joint conspiracy of Bayne and Stone to achieve
their ends. Had their been a direct orimary and a popular vote, I would have
hnd no misgivings, but under the delegate system where the nomiration was
made in convention, I saw many difficulties ahead. The new primaries were

fixed for September, mreceding the fall election by only & few weeks.
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On my return from the iest, I was glnd to hear that Mayor Wyman and his
administration had promised me treir umgqualfied support. Although I did not
have much faith in the mayor's promises, I knew beyond question that Wyman
and Stone had long been bitter personal and political enemies. So, I felt at
this time the breach would not be closed as it would greatly impair the mayor's
prestige if he joined hands with his arch enemy. He would also lay himself

wide open to the charge of corruption if he should switch his support now.
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THE CLOSING D'YS OF THE CA'PAIGN

Two weeks before the primaries it became clearly anparent that my opponent
based his hope of success on the lavish use of money and every possible form
of coercion. It was plein that the Bayne-Stone combination had lost hope
of winning by fair means and that, from their standpoint, they felt justified
in saving themselves from political oblivion by any tactics, however
despicable. It was not until weeks afterwards, however, that the full amount
of money expended by the opposition was revealed. But I was satisfied that
I had behind me the great preponderance of the voters, and it did not seem
possible to thwart their wishes.

Then came disquieting rumors that llayor /yman was once more preparing
to switch his allegiance. If these were so, it would affect the fidelity of
many of my delegates in the City of Allegheny who had either been put up
for me by the mayor or were otherwise under his control. Detectives were
employed at once, and their reports showed beyound a doubt that the city
administration, from top to bottom, was working for the Stone delegates.

To correct this situation, I had many of these delegates retire in favor of
more faithful substitutes; this, of course, caused much friction,

On the day of the primaries word came nearly every hour to my headquarters
that certain of my delegates had disappeared from the polling places, leaving
me unrepresented. After the close of the polls and the day following, it was
learned that more than a dozen of my delegates, elected in my behalf, had
transferred their credentials either to the losing delegate or to someone else
favoring Colonel Stone.

Contests numbering more than thirty were started in nrecincts where I
hed been corruptly deprived of my delegates, either by a trznsfer of credentials
or by the sending of my representatives out of town.

When the convention assembled in the mayor's stronghold, the City Hall,

a motion was made to send these cases to the Committee on Contested Seats.
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Many affidavits hed been made bearins on the contests, besides the sumoning
of more than a hundred witnesses. When the motion referred to was made, the
objection was raised to a hearing on the contest on the ground that the notices
of such contests had been filed one hour late. It was alleged that the notices
insteed of being presented at moon the day before, had not reached the
secretary of the district committee until one p.m. Thereupon, George E. Shaw,
a brilliant young lawyer and a successful delegate from my ward, protested
against the effort to block a hearing. He pointed out that at the previous
convention, Colonel Stone had been nominated in vioclation of every fundamental
rule governing the election or convention and that for these same forces now
ro raise a purely technieal point of #o moment would bring about a more
corrupt nomination than on the first occasion. The Republican party, he
avowed, could i1l afford to have a convention again openly defy the wishes
of a great majority of the voters, especially as none of the contested election
but upon charges of fraud;
cases was based upon a technicality; nor, he insisted, could so many contests
have been filed sconer.

The chairman, however, decided that the rule having been invoked, it
was for the majority of the convention to decide whether the time 1limit should
be extended an hour. ‘hen such a motion was made, the fraudulently elected
delegates were nermitted to vote, thus assuring Colonel Stone a majority of
four in the convention insteadof being defeated by nearly fifty votes,
Thereupon, on the request of one of my floor leaders, those delegates supporting
me were asked to leave the hall so as not to participate in enother fraudulent
nomination.

The retiring delegates found the door leading into the hallway locked,
with a policeman standing guard. On his refusing to open the door, a two
hundred pound delegate of mine from the borough of Ltna threatened to throw
the policeman out of the window unless he opened the door. This delegate

shouted that the officer had no authority to put the convention under arrest.
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This threat sufficed, and as the door swung open, Chief of Police !Murphy
and two lieutenants were found on the other side of the threshold, tacitly
showing how Mayor Wyman had been exerting his influence, As the delegates
filed out a cheer was heard from the other end of the hall, giving evidence
that Colonel Stone was once more the wictor as the result of his utter

disregard for fair play or decency.

NOMINATED IN ANOTHER CONVENTION

After my delegates had retired from the convention that had nominated
Colonel Stone by strong-armed tactics, they assembled in a nearby hall,

Here the convention was formally organized and my contesting delegates
declared duly elected, thus giving me a large majority.

On motion, my name was presented as a candidate, and I was unanimously
elected. Thereupon, I was sent for and addressed the gathering., .Aifter expressing
my great appreciation for the faithful support given me in the campaign
and for the honor tendered me in the newly organized convention, I declined to
accept the nomination. In explanation, I pointed out that it was then too
late to test the legality of my opponent's nomination in the courts. Were
I forced to run as an indenendent candidate, 1 stated, it meant the election
of a Democrat to Congress in a three cornered fight. This result should be
avoided when the upholding of the tariff was a matter of wital economic
importance to 7estern Pennsylvania as well as to the country at large.

I concluded by making three pledges: Firat, that Colonel Stone would
bexpmmxmz opposed at the next election by a suitable candidate; second, that
I would immediately take stens to punish criminally or otherwise those
noliticians who had been responsible for the corrupt control of the convention
nominating Colonel Stone; third, that in behald of our party I would try to
bring about a better and more representative method of nominating candidates
at the primaries. My express intention of punishing those ghilty of fraud

or coercion was greeted with prolonged applause.

Memoirs_Box1_Folder12_179.tif



/ QPSS TS g f“ &wj,.i;.uji)

; / A SUCCESSFUL REFORM MOVENENT

oz BEGINNING OF T'E REFORM MOVEMENT

I was determined to secure the punishment of the men guilty of fraud
and corruption in the two previous congressional primaries, but I quiekly
discovered that it was a difficult thing to bring about. I had ample
evidence of the bribing and coercion of my delegates and the purchase of
solitical leaders pledged to my support. But I fo_u.nd, in the course of my
inquiry, that the existing primary regulations had no legal standing. They
were extra-legal rules for procedure developed and accepted by the several
politie-1 parties. Coasequently, thore was really no legal redress for
frauds in a primary contest.

Realizing that any direct attack in the courts on my politécal foes
was impracticable, I decided to take a different line. Vigorous protests
were formulated and sent to Postmaster Ceneral Wanamaker against the
activities of the assistant postmaster of illegheny. This worthy's contribu-
tion to the conspiraey had been the nurchase and transfer of credentials to
defeated candidates for delegates. The protests were as effective as they
were emphatic, and his remov-l speedily followed. A similar procedure in
the case of the Collector of Internal Revenue for the district brought a
sharp reprimand for his interference in the selection of party candidates.
The reprimand was shortly followed by his resignation.

I was, however, much more interested in securing the punishment of
Mayor Wiyman, whose betrayal of my interests in each of the primary contests
was currently believed to have been in consideration of a substantial price.
As he was safe from direct attack, for the reasons stated above, I cast about
for other ways of reaching him. Definite information bearing out current
renort of the mayor's corruption in the discharge of his official duties
suggested the way. Deeming it inadvisable that I, or my volitical advisers,

should press for an investigstion, I set mpself to the task of building up
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a reform organization that would take the initiative .

Distrust of Mayor ¥Wyman and his methods was so prevalent that there was
little difficulty in enrolling some 100 prominent citizens of Allegheny in
such a movement. The work was largely in the hands of well known young business
men, with Robert A. Lea acting as tempcrary cheirman., As it was my desire
to keep in the background, I and my sdvisers saw to it that the membership
contained none of my more active supporters. The immediate purpose was to
secure en audit of the mayor's accounts. So great was the feeling aroused
by his unsavory methods, that : ithout any vrging from us, the association
pressed its demand for the audit with the greatest vigor on the select and
common couneil of the city. These bodies alome, by joint resolution, could
authorize the inquiry.

The majority of the councilmen were under the control of the mayor and
his political associates, but the members included a number of men who were
independent in their views and, also, possessed of great courage and integrity.
Another groupwas susceptible to the influence of a movement such as we had
put on its feet, particularly as i had strong endorsements from the press.

At the outset of the movement, I was requested the executive committes,
because of my knowledge of local conditions end because it believed I would
present the facts fairly and without personal bias, to prepare a series of
bulletins outlining the purnoses of the association. This I consented to do,
with the understanding that it should not become known that I was the author,

Continued pressures from the association and the press soon resulted

in the council’s directing an auidt of the Mayor's books.

REPORT OF THE AUDITORS
After a careful examination of the mayor’s records, the auditors reported
that the Mayor had obtained thousands of dollars by illegal methods. It

was charged thet he had been guilty of many cases of extortion through
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the imposition of fines which he pocketed as a part of his compensation in
the trial of cases. For instance, in directing a raid against alleged
disorderly houses, he would fine the defendant in a nominal amount and then
charge each with all the costs instead of pro rata. This excess, the Vayor
would retain for himself. As the fines were small the defendants made no
protest.

In other instances, the docket showed the defendant discharged on the
payment of costs, while the mayor pocketed the fines not disclosed by the
record. In some instances, the fines were split between the city and mayor.

After the puditor's rejort was taken up for consideration by the City
Council, the Pittsburgh Leader, in its news column, reported the situation as

follows
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After these disclosures, I consulted with the District Attorney of the
county who favored an immediate presentment to the grand jury. Furthermore,

I engaged one of the leading criminal lawyers of the local bar to assist in
the prosecution. The tetainer that I paid him was afterwards returned to me
by the reform association.

On the return of an indictment and the trial of the case, great interest
was manifested throughout the community, for it was the first time that a
mayor of one of our larger cities had been charged with extortion and
embézzlement.

After a trial lasting nearly a week before Judge Kennedy, the sitting in
the Quarter Sessions Court, the jury returned a verdict of guilty on all noints.
The Commercial Gazette, in an editorial, refers to the great benefit coming
from this successful prosecution, as follows:

"Let it be understood from this time on that every job and jobber will be
shown up. "hen men who ought to be dcing time in the work-house or jail
aspire to fill important and honorable positions, let them be told in plain
English that they will not be permitted to take the oath of office,
even though they succeed in having themselves chosen. Men who know they
have been blackmailers, and who have condoned and tolerated crime for a
consideration, may as well understand first as last that they will be
brought up with a short turn in " he courts if they persist in forcing them-
selves into positions that they have neither the ability nor the honesty
to fill. Once establish this precedent and it will not be long untill good
men will come to the fromt and offer themselves for these positions of
trust.”

A REVEALING INTERVIEW

During the week following the conclusion of the case, the convicted
mayor remained at liberty by a renewal of his bond pending the motion for
a new trial. One morning the office boy told me, with an air of suppressed
excitement that Mayor “yman was in the waiting room and would like to see me.

As he crossed the threshold I noticed his changed appearance. And as
he sank down in a chair I motioned him te take, it was plain that he had

come to ask for merclf. Perhaps, I thought, he might reveal the record of
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of his recent treachery. In a husky voice and with tears in his eyes, he
spoke of his downfall and the shame that had come to his wife and children.
mind all this,” he saild, "because friends that should have helped me have
apparently rejoiced over my plight.”™ Thereupon I interrupted him by saying,
"The friends you refer to were Congressman Bayne and Colonel stone, two of
your former political enemies. These two, having gotten out of you what
they wanted, are doubly pleased that you are headed for prison.”

At these remakrs of mine, the large and bulky figure cowered in the
chair. All he could say was, "I want help from the one whom I hurt.”

This scene took me back some years before when, near the shores of Lake
Superior, I had trapped a huge timber wolf, the slayer in its day of hundreds
of deer. As I stood close by the trap, the animal with bloodshot eyes
seemed to be appealing for merch. The mercy came in the form of a bullet
through its brain, In trapping the Mayor I could not thus summarily dispose
of him, Therefore, I figured on receiving information that cculd come
only from his lips. Before fixing upon terms of surrender, I asked him
just what he wanted me to do. To this, the Mayor responded that he hoped
I would see Juige Kennedy, who presided at his trial, and that I would sugsest
to the court which had already ihtimated a sentence to the penitentiary
that justice would be done if he were sent to the workhouse instead. Cther-
wise, the lMayor pleaded, he would lose his right of citizenship, becoming
a social and political outeast the rest of his life.

I then explained that there were a number of things which must be dons
before I could think of doing what he wished. I asked him if he would meke

a clean breast of his doings in the two Congressional primaries anmd if, nrgar

going so, he would resign from office without taking an esppeal to the higher
courts. He evidently realized that I could not be placated in any other way.
Thereupon, he told me how he had reccived 23000.00 from a representative of

Congressman Bayne on the condition that he withdraw his support from me.
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£nd, he added triumphantly, he was not required to oppose me openly. Again
I interrupted him by saying that what he told about the first campaign did
not apply to the second one against Colonel itone in which he had not only
deserted me but actually supported my opponent in every possible way. "What
did you get for this?"” I esked. After a moment’s hesitation, he said, "I got
$15000,00 in cash for myself and $5000.00 for certain police officials. 1In
addition, I arranged for the payment of a considerable sum of money to certain
delegates of yours." DMNinor details were then given which need not be mentioned
here.

When Judge Kennedy learned of the Mayor's confession to me and his
aggreement that he would resign his office amd stend for sentence without an
appeal which might mean a year's delay, the Judge sent him to the workhouse

out of consideration for what he had done and sgreed to do.

BEGINNING OF A NEW RECIME

With the Mayor duly incarcerated and his office vacated, a special
election was called for the selection of a successor. 'ith the opposition
badly demoralized and the leaders fearing exposure and possible prosecution,
no counter movement was started against the election of my uncle and campaign
manager, Willism M. FKennedy. His later induction into office put an end to
the old Wyman machine. And all the time, Messrs, Bayne and Stone kept
discreetly silent.

It was thereupon conceded that at the next Congressional campaign I
would have little if any difficulty in disposing of Colonel Stone., But the
question naturally arose as to why I should be such a candidate when I had
originally no desire to go to Congress and had only been forced into the
previous contest by a strange combination of circumstances.

Most of my friends and a good portion of the public took the view that

I should enter the contest once again as a matter of persoral and political
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vindication. However, this question was solved by an unexpected event,

to wit, the nomination of my father as a Justice of the United States
Supreme Court by President Harrison. This meant the breaking up of our law
firm, with the head of it in Washington under a life appointment and myself
headed toward the nation's capitol as a menber of Congress., To meke a long
story short, I waived aside any possible political preferment and contentedly
settled down to the practice of law. And I determined, thereafter to stick

to this resolve,
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IHE ATTEMPTED ILPRACHMENT OF JUDGE MHITE
i Lhe most interesting and exelibting event during the writsr's

Bervice as a neaber of the legislature was his effort to have Judge
de We Wilte of the Common Pleas Court, No. 2, removed from office
by impeadanent, based upon the charges of malfeasance in the
discharpe of his judielal duties, during the previous year.

In 1887 the legislature passed the Brooks High License
law, wnich In addition to requiring the payment annvally of
£1,000.00 also placed the granting or refusal of all llcense
apnlications in the hands of ths judges of the Common Pleas
Court of each countye

By the time the leglslature had convened in 1889 it was the
genernl opinion that this new 1:v zad been a great success, not
only in the enrichment of the county treasury, but more parte
icularly in the large reduchion of the number of licensss hereloe
fore granted and in the selecbion of a better class of licensess
Eevetofore sholesale and retail liquor licenses were granted
practically to all applicants and on the payment of a suall fee
with the result that in Allegheny County and in other countles
having a large population thousands of licenses were grauted ,
many of them in residential districts, and others crowded into
the business and lndustrial sectionse Such competiblon brought
about the vidation of practically every law regulatlvs the sale
cf inteoxicants. Under the new law it was necessary for each
applicant to show that his license Wwas necessary for the convenw
ience of those living in the wiesinity, and under this provision
the Jjudges usually refused a license in purely residential
districts besides glving preference to hotels and restaurants
bearing a good reputation, or to thosw dealers whose reputation and
location justiflied their selection. Ir Allegheny County the
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.licensea were reduced about twoethirds over the previous years
and while this naturd 1y caused much resentment among the
rejected ap.licants and while there were others wWao conbended 1t
wag not o judicial function of the courts the great m.88 of the
people was enbirely in accord with the operation of the law,
and it may be noted here that the law remained on the statute
books with no material changes until the enactment of the Eignteenth
Anendment to the Federal Constitution prohibiting the wanue
facture, sale and transportation of intoxicantae
Zisuigting Rumors are Heapd
The amual session of the License Gourt of 1889 in
Allegneny Bounty was presided over by Je We Fe Wnite, one
of the cldest and nmost experienced members of the local judice
iarys While at the public hearings at this sesslon of the couwrd
1t was surnised f{rom the actione of Judge White that the number
of licenses to be granted would be materially reduced over that
of the previous years Thle proved to be the case for only about
100 licenses were granbed, bubt what cauced the greatest sure
prise was the refudal of licenses %o wellenanaged hotels and
restaurants or other suitable applicants and the giving of llice
enses to new applicants or to those least worthy; some of then
belng in residential sectionse Except in the case of extremists
the press and the public unitedly condemmed Judge White'e
actions. It was seen at a glance that great fortunes would be
rolled up by the few possessing 2 license and that the zatter
of public accommodation had been largely ignored. As the law,
gave each llcensed judge the arbitrary right to grant or refuse
a license there was no remedy available in meeting this unexpected

situation. After the License Courtd lhad adjourned, it was disclosec
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S
by the recoxrds that nearly one~half the successful applicants
had been represented in court by a nophew of Judge Whitey and
many wers the surmises as to the large size of the fees collected
by this lawyer. Until thic disclosure the daily press had treated
Judge White leniently, several giving expresslon to the belief
that this judge who had heretofore occupled an exalted position
on the bench had been unduly swayed by h.i.a abhorrance of tlhe
liquor traffic, and thait he had taken advantage of an oppore
tunity to give expression to this belief by granting only a
few licenses and those who coritized him thought it would be
much bettér if he had grented no licenses and thus stood upon the
interpretabion of the law that he possessed the power to make the
county drye After it uas found that the court had indulged
in rank diserimination in the grenting of licenses to these v
represented by & polative of the Jjudge criticlsa both public and
private becane pvampant, bub as ne denand was made for impeachment
proceedings it looked as though the situatlon would gradually
quiet dowm.

One Saturday in Harch when I was spending the dzy in ny law
office after leaving Harrisburg the night before I was visited
bWy 8 meubep Of the law firm of which the senlor member Was
the attorney previously mentionede He told me that disscnslions
had arisea in the flra over the division of the fecs in License
Gourt nsbtorse He alleged that a note for §5,000:00 payable by
Judge Walte Lo nis nephew had peen cancelled, and that this

amount had been doducked from the license feco hefore apporbioned

the firm, and further, that large guns of mone?r?iaﬁ other

successful applicants $o the senlor member of the firz vwihere 1c

had not appeared cn the court reccrd 28 counsel, but represented
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then sscretlyzeo far as the public was concerned his connection
With these cases was kmowmn by the courte

After these disclosures were carefully considered I thought
it oy duty to prepare a resolution of impeachment to be presented
in the lower House, launediately upon my retwm to Harrisburge
As 1in other states the sole power of impeachment was possessed by
the How e of Representatlves, acting in the capacity of 2 grand
Jury in determining whether an accused public official wie appars
ently gullty of the charges presented and if so satisfied the
procesdinge were then transferred to the Senate to be tried by
that bodyy a . conviction requiring the eoncurrence of two-thirds
of the uembers presente Since the Leglselature was expected to
adjourn within two wesks little time was loft for the preparation
of the artleles of impeachmenty and thelr presentation and passage
by the House. ©Should the lowsr hody aect in the affirmative the
Benate, being a continuing bedy could sit in extra session to
pass upon the charges preferred in the impeachment, I consldered
it a wise policy not to give the press or the pubiic any notlce
of my intentiocn, for the charges were bound to cause great excitee
ment in the conmunity and I shold be inportuned on all sides
by those op.osing, or supporting the proceedings, and to no good
PUrpose. %o the preparation of the impeachment napers I gave
as cax'eful‘consiaaration as was pessible unuer the clircumstancess
On Wednesday afbernoon May ist, I left for Harrisburg with a view
of prosenting the resolublon in the House the following morning and
belleved B that up %o that tlme no person in publie or private
life had an inkling of what I intendss doings In this viev I was
somewhat mistaken for at two o'clock in the morning,Hay 2nd I was
roused by a rapping cn my bedroom dcory and rising, I was confrontdd
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fw Robert Siupson, the CGapitol correspondent of the Pittsburgh
Dispatchs He then sald he had just received a telegram from

his paper stating that at the morning sescion of the House 1t

was my intenbtion to Introduce a2 very iuportant resolution, but
that the publishers did not know the character of it, and for hinm
to fiad out at cneey if il were possible. Simpson ard I had

been friends for many years and I had impiicit confidence in

his integrity, thus feeling that any information I gave him would
be kept in strictest confidence. I then explained to him my
intentions, and that I belleved he had earmed the right for a
"scoopy" so dear to newspapermeny It was arranged that his newspaper
could issue a speclal editlon on or after ninc olclock that
morning, when the House would be in sezaion and wien I expected

to introduce the resolution on its convening. In the concluding
twWo wecks of the session the Legislature met an Hour earliers
After the speakor had taken hls seat about five miautes elapsed
before the House was called to crdere. At which time I rose and
gave notice I had a resolutlion %o offers Az the resolution was

8 being taken by a page to the Speaker in order that he Might
present the same to the House I was hurriedly approached by Majority
Leader Andrews, who asked me what was the nature of the resolution,
as he had Just been informed by wire that the Pltisburgh Dispatich
had postecd & Wlletin glving notice of an extrs edition containing
n account of the proposed impsachmeni of Judge ‘Hhit.e.. Hince
nothing could then be gained by concealment I dld not sontradict
his information. Ths Speaker aftor personally exanmining the
resolution prepared to read wie same, Whereupon Andrews entered

an objection and asked that it be pasced over under the ruies.
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This was done, for the consideration of every resolution
required unanimous consent except on the Monday night calendar,
when resolutions could be passed or rejected only on a najle
ority vete. The speiker added that the resoiubion night be
presented again at the Monday evening session when resolutlons
Were in orders. This development was not unsxpeched, although
1 thought much of the blawe could be placed on my shoulders
for not having the announcenent of the resolubion until I
had sufficient time to get it before the Houses I Was not
discouraged, however, for I felt that in the four days intere
vening bhefcre the resclution could be considered that I would
khave the needed bime to take a test of Bentinent of the menbors
and to arrange for the proper presentation of the subjocte With
ny omnsent the resoiubion was given to the nembers on the floor,
® that they might become acquainted with its object. In the
middle of the afterncon a large number of the extra cdition
of the Dispatch reached Harrisburg sc that before evenlnyg every
cne interested in the proposed Ampeaciunent procssding had full
information on the subject.

A reduced facelnmile of the paper's announcement of the

proposed impeachment -fcllowes
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Preparations for the GConsideration of the Resolution.

It seemed the part of wisdom to remein continuously st the
capital during the few days before it could be of fercd again under
the rules of the liouse, .I consulted freely with most of the members
and fclt satiffied that the resolution would pass if voted upon by
two thi ds of the !House. he Uemocratic mcmbers lined up solidly
behind me, due partly for political advantagee. The country members
who believed thoroughly in & new license laws, instead of being antago=-
nistic took the position that Judge white's arbitrary conduct had
reflected upon the wisdom of this legislation, while the city members
from Pittsburgh and Philadelphia so subject to control by the political
leaders showed signs of breaking away from this domination regerding
the setions of the court as that of a fanatic. Doubtless this situation
was s on discovercd by the floor leaders and tThose representing the state
orgenization. They ergued with me that it was bad politics to t.¥y
a prominent republican judge on the eve ol the gubernatorial election
whizh °rr various other reasons was involved in much doubte ilaking
no headway in these overtures they devoted the intervening tinc to some
plans for cireunventing it. On the second afternoon word came ©O me
thet .udge hite bhad arrived at the Pennsylvenle station snd was in
consultation with his close friend Jemes L. Graham, then representing
en adjoining district jn the City of iAllegheny. “hen this visit became
known majority leader Andrews sent word to Graham that the accused
judge must lesve town at once or ne would dcfeat the efforts of any of

his friends to take care of his interests.
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: When ilonday, May 6, came around I was sure that I had enough
support lined up to carry my resolution. At the afternoon
sesslon, however, Mr. Grahan rose in his place about 5.30 p. e
and moved that the House should take & vecess until 7.3C p.o.
The mction wao second. The object was evidenrly for the purpose
of deieating the regular evenlng session by continulng the afterncon
ealendar, thereby preventing the consideration of any or all
original resoluticne in order under the rule of the iouse at
each ionday evening regular segsione At ny-reguest ny friend
and colleasue, Hon. Charlce We Robirgson, hastened to his seat
ané demanded & roll call on said motlcn, the sane being duly
secondsd by at least five other membere; but the demand was
ignored by the preslding ofilcer, the Hone. Herpy Hall, and on the
vive voce vote Mre Robinson demanded a division to deteraine
the sentisent of the House. The request was also ignored, and
the House wasc declared to have taken a recess, witheout elther
division or roll call, and in the face of & determined and very
apparent request on the vert of many members of the House.

By taking the sald recess the conslderatlion cf ocriginal
pesolutions was not in order at any btime before the final
adjournment of the legislature, on MHay gth, this eessj.on.bolng
the last ona, under the rules of the Houce for their consicer=
aticne.

ir. Robinson later told no that in a conversatlon with Hr.
va1l a month later, in tne eity of Pittsburgh, the labter in-
formed him that it had been aprranged that Hre Hall should take

the chair thab aftornoon aund thab at 10 minutes to six Mre

Grahan would nake the mobtlion =hove referred to, and the sane

was to be put immediately and declarad carried on a viva voce
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vote; that thls program was adhered to by him in ignorance of
2 prover understanding of the matter, and that he was sorry to
have been & party to a procedure that prevenbed his friend, Mr.
Shiras, frem stating his position or ascertainliy bthe sentiment
of the House cn the resgolution.
Song Ffubsgquont Dlsgovsriss :
Whern the effort had failed to have Judge White lavestigated

by the legislature, I went to my suamey home on Lake Superlor

for a few we.is, glad of the opportunity to free my mind from the

wrry of the precedilyg . Wweaks.

On my return I § concluded that I should take seme further
steps in the vindicatlon of my course, even though I had no
immdciate intention of renewing oy attack.

Although I was eatisfled that the means taken by the
Republican leaders %0 prevent an investigation as & wise pole
1tical move in view of the approaching gubarmatorlal electlon,
I felt certain that the means taken to cover ur this scandal
nad been dlrectly Lustigabted bp Judge White'e personal friends,
and that he had been a party in the execubtlon of the scherce

Recalling that Judge White had vl:itgd Harrlgburg the day
following the introduction of the 1.peachngnt resolution and
that he had been in consuldation with repre sentatblve James
living in a diegtrict adjoining

L Grahan, & personal friend,

mine, I felt certalin that inerininating correspondence had

passed between the LWo.

Under this bellef I called oht

at the Gruham hone onc nigh

and after 3 few minutes genoral conversabion I sail bo hin

w.th more ascurance btoan I really Telts "You pocelved & couple

ing the we

of letters fron Judge White uur
' Apparently startled

investigated. I would 1ike bto se. tusm.'
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?w this request he made no denial, saying the letters could not
be shown to me as they were confidentizl. I agreed with hin

that under ordinary circumstances thaet he was right, but taat

in view of what had hap ened at Habrisburg this correspondence
waps material in proving & conspiracy between himself as a member
of the inmpeaching body and the accused. Which belng the case

I had the rignt to have oach of them indicted for such an ofiense.
If the letters were mimrendexito me, I assured him, tney would be
returned with a promlse on my part that this correspondeice

would not be publisted wntil after the Judge's death, 1f at all,
for my sole purpcse was 40 be in possescsion of records justiiylng
my courss in the heglslature. This threat had an lamedlated
efiect and I was glven two letlers that bore out a4y susplclonss

Ir the first letter Judge White thanked Representatlve Graham

for the pian he had in mind of defeating the investlgation, and
he continued %hat he hoped it would succeed. In the secliond
communication following the pariiamentary btrick, preventing the
consideration of *the impeachment resolubtion, the accusad Judge
expressed nis heartfelt thanss for the successful manner in valeh
;ggnPhad been carried into effecte Fhotographlc co les were

nade of these letters and are now in my possessione When later
on Judge Wnite learned what I had done he wiote me at length
saying he hoped that I would not stir the mabter up again and
closed with the assurance that he had never doubted ny honesty

of purpose and that he deslred to be a friend of mine hereafter.
Ynis was such a cauplete surrender and such a clear adniseion that
I had been justified in my sonduct that it softened uy heart =o Iar

as the future wae concermsede Thls lebber ig also in my possessions
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FRIENDSHIPS OF .THE ROUND TABLE

In those l.rger citles in which the county court house
hap-ens to be located, it is customary for members of the bar
to have thelr offices in the immediate vicinihy of the couris.
As a result of this little groups take their luncii in a
conveniently located club, hotel or restaurant, such assoclation
often continuing for many years. The little set of which I was
one originally consisted of only five or six, ranging between
twenty-five or thirty years of ages Gmdualiy the members
increased to more than a dozen. The first few years we had
agganged for us a round btable so sultable for varylng nunbers
ahd in the dosmstairs dining room of a new hotel, and here
between twelve and two o'clock, the majority of the members
came regularly. Later we all becane meubers of a new club
where the dining room W:s on the upper floor, and where we
continued to gather for more than twenty years, death
oceassionally removing one and another taking his place.

While in no sense a selected group it was natural that it
should be composcd of those more or less associated in the
practice of the law, or by reason of congenialitye.

As night be expected many of us possessed individual
charwcteristics which night or might not be agreeable to the
group as & wholes Selfishness, egotlsm, undue pre judices and
eccentricities in manner or specch was not unknown, but with the
result of constant assocliation our dispositions becane molded
in better accord, for no individual was long peraitted to
evidence, any folble, mamnerisa or other pecullariby unaccept=

able to the rest. Even when some of the members were elevated
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to the local bench freedom of expressicn continued to the
very declded advantage to the jurists, who so ocften prove
to become brusque or dictatorial when separated from close
contact with members of the bare. This rubbing down process
soon resulted in each of us giving up pecullarities unfavor-
able to the harmony or disposition of the group, and has, I
think, had much to do with the success of many of them in
‘later years. A glance at the careers of the various meubers
after twenty~five years of intimate contact therefore may become
mterest.:l_.ngou Of the fourteen that daily gathered about the Round
Table except when professional dutles prevented, the following
is the record:

Two who had been younger assoclates in the distinguished
law fira of Knox and Reed had become senlor members; another
becane general counsel for the Pennsylvanla Ra.:l_.lroa.d., while
another accepted the position of professor of law in the University
of Pittcburgh, several of them declining elevatlon to the bench.
The remaining nine, all of whon entered public life are desig-
nated by numerals and not by names.
1. United States District Attorney, judge of the court of Common
Pleas and later a member of the Federal Bistrict Court;
2. Thirty years a meuber of one of the Courts of Common Pleas;
3. Leglslator and member of Congress;
4. Tuwenty-five years a judge of the Orphans’ Court;
5¢ Attorney General of the United States, in the cabinets of
McKinley and Roosevelt, Unlted States Senator and later Secretary
of the State. ;
6. Judge of the Court of Common FPleas and later presiding judge
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of the State Superior Court; \’
7. Judge of the United St.tes Qist.rlct Court;

8. Legal expert and chairman of the Board of County Appralisers, and
9+ A member of the leglslature, Judge of the Court of Comacn Pleas
and Chief Justice of the State Supreme Court.

This brief summary would seea to indicate that the influence
of the Round Table had helped play its part in preparing the
members for a useful and diversiflied public services

However, the influence of the Round Table in keeping alive
the memories of the past, and in the welding of 1lifelong
friendships has been more esteemed by most of us than public
honor, so flecting in couparison to enduring tlies between one's

fellow mens
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‘ CONTESTED ELECTION CASE OF CONKELL VE. HOWELL IN WHICH THE
AUTHOR PARTICITPATED
Events leading up to the Case

Foilowing the nomination of candidates by the Citizens'
party, and the endorsement of the same by the Democratic organ-
ization of Allegheny county, objections were filed to this
endorsenent by a Democrat holding office under the Republlcan post=
master of Allegheny city, and a hearing on this issue was fixed
at Harrisburg, where such natters were decided by the Dauphin
county court.

I was requested to take charge of this matter, and went bo
Harrisburg, where I engaged well known legal counsel Lo appear
in our behalf. Vhile in the court room, awaiting the call of
the case, I was much interested in a simllar 1ssue then being
coneldered by the judges. At a Democratic Congressional
econvention in the 10th district, Willianm Connell, a Republican,
was endorsed over George Howell, the Demccritle aspirant. The
evidence showed plainly that Connell had debuuched this convention
by a lavish use of noney and by various coercive methodss 5o
evident was this that the court announced before ad journnment
that the Demoeratic nominiatlon received by Connell was fraudulent.
the court failed, however, to give the nomination to Howell, so
that he was foreced to run on an independent Democratlic ticketbs

When the Citizens' party case was called, the court with
equal pronptness held that the Democratic endorsement was legal,
and dismissed the proceedingse

After the congrescional elections 1 found that Howell, the
independent Democratic ¢condidate, had been returned elected by
a majority of more than 500 votes over Connell, and had been

duly seateds Thereupon connell began a contest against his
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uccessful rival on the ground of fraud or other irregularities.

fhis contest was designedly referred to the Committee on Llections
No. 3, composed of six Republican members friendly to the contestant
who had served in two irevious teruns, while the minority was
made up of three southern Vemocrats from South Carolina, Mississi-
ppi, and Texas, whose appeals for honest elections were sure to
be regarded as a Joke by the Republicans of the Houses

Actlve on this committee was a Pennsylvania nember, He
Burd Cassel, and aclose personal friend of the contestant. This
menber, whcm I knew very well, began soliciting votes among the
Republican meumbers before the case had been decided by the com=
mittee. In speaking about the matter to me, he said, it would be
a nice thing to give the "old man" his seat for a Christnas
gift, and that he was going to see "Uncle Joe" about hastening
a favorable report from the committee. I told my solicitor that
I could not promise to vote for the seating of Connell, as his
Democratic opponent had been fairly elected and would probably
have received a majority of 5,000 votes if he had not been deprived
of the regular party nomination by the unfalr means used by the
Republican candidate, since the Democratic candidate for governor
had carried thls Congres:ional district by a majority of about
6,000. In concluding this interview, I said that I did not
expect to take the floor when the contest came before the House,
for my motive might be nmisrepresented owing to Denocratic support
I had received iln oy omn casée

In the course of a few weeks the election committee, Dby
strickly party vote, awarded the seat to the contestant; and
being a privilege issue, it was put on the calendar for imnediate

consideration. By this time it had become known generally that
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Ere. Connell, the millionaire coal baron, had spent over
$100,000 in presenting his evidence before the comulttee,
callin some 6,000 witnesses with a2 view to nuddling up the
contest; while his opponent, a country aschoolmaster, was unable
to sunmon wholesale evidence of this kind on account of the pro-
hibitive expenses The counittee, on finding that a nuaber of
fraudulent or otherwise illegal votes had been cassé, dld not
attempt to deternine for whom such ballots were cast, but
merely assumed that Howell had been the sole beneflclary of these
illie3al ballots, and in this way the majorlity of the comnittee
found that Connell had been elected by a little over 200 votes.
Such a method of procedure .as of course prepostercus.
i‘he debate on this contest lasted several days, the speakers
being divided on party lines, and it was evident that the case
would be decided in the same partisan way unless something could
be cone to thwart this wronge ¥inally I asked John Dalzell and
several other party leaders to ;;revent. the unseating of the duly
elected Vemocratic candidate, saying that it was a farce for us
to protest against the unfair methods in the South, and at the
sane time try to convince the public that a millionaire candi-
date had been defrauded of his seat by a country schoolmaster
in our own states Each of these replied that the com dttee
had heard all the evidence and it was therefore a safe rule
to apide by their findings, and that, as a new member, I should
not run counter to this custon.
+shen one hour remained before the taking of ths vote, I
could stand it no longer, and under the time liunitation rule
covering the concluding arguments, I took the floore. Up to
this time little general interest was belng taken in the argue
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nents, for with the large Republican majority, and no apparent
split in the party lines, the result seemed certaine On 1t
beconing manifest that I was speaking in opposlition to the
connittee's report, I was asked to occupy the middle alsle,
while the leading partisans on elther side grouped themselves
about m8s 4As a result of this excitement I felt some concern,
but under the time allowance hoped to be able to emplalin why I
intended to cast nmy vote for the sitting membere. When ny
tine expiz'ed it was renewed repeatedlys.. Thus I as able, under
many interruptions, to present my views, and to take good
naturedly personalitles, although, of course, I was far fronm
satisfied with the mamner in which I was able to meet and
parry the queries designed to embarrass me in every possible
waye.

Ten ninutes before the vote was taken, and just after I
concluded speaking, .ayne Parker, a member fron New Jersey,
came to my desk saving that the New Jerse; deleg:tion was golng
to vote solidly for Howells I thereupon begied Parker to take
a few of the remaining ninutes in behalf of the sitting member,
and while he hesitated, Wim. M. Lamming of New Jersey sald he would
speak, and dld so effectively, for his regularity could rot be
questionede. It may be stated that the speaker's probity and
judiclal fairness was evidenced a few years later waen President
Rocsevelt appointed him a Federal judge.

I now quote from the Congressional ijecord. a portion of
the debate in the contested election case, under date of February
oth and 10th, 19043
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CONTESTED=ELECTION CASE«-CONNELL VSe. HOWELL

Hr. DBRISCOLL. Mr. Speaker, by direction of the Comnittee
on Elections Nos. 3, and in pursuance of a notice given last
week, I now call up for present consideration the contestede
election case of William Connell v. George Howell, from the
Tenth Congressional district of Pennsylvania.

The SFZAKER. The Clerk will report the resolutions.
The clerk read as follows:

House resolution o 195.

Resolved, That Hon. Geor§e Howell was not elected
a Representative in the “ifty-eighth Congress
from the Tenth District of the State of Penne
sylvania, and 1ls entitled to a seat therelin.
Resgolved, That Hon. William Connell was duly
elected a Representative in the Fifty-eighth
Congress from the Tenth District of the State

of Pennsylvania, and 1s entitled to a seat
therein.

Mr. DRISCOLLe The time to be equalliy divided and to be controlled

by the gentleman fronm Mississippl on his side and by nyself on
this sides

(The two days debate on this subject is omitted
except a8 1t relates to the author's particlpation
therein, which follows:)

HMr. HeLAINe Hr. Speaker, I yleld fifteen minutes to the gentleman
from Pennsylvania (ire. Shiras).

¥pr, SHIRAS. Ur. Speaker, I have examined the majority and
minority reports in this case. I have also locked over the
evidence that was considered material, and I consulted at

a considerable length of time with the majority of the members
that composed the Republican majority in this comulttess
Nobwithstanding the consideration given to the report of the
majority, I find I am unable to agree in the recommendations
nade by @y party colleaguess In the first place, permit ne to
say that I do not question for an instant the sincerity of the
gentlemen who compose the majority of this comulttee. Anyone
who listened to the remarks of the gentleman fronm Iowa(lir.
Birdsall) and the chairman of this committee, the gentleman from
llew York(ir. Driscoll), must be lmpressed with the fact that these
men believe they are right.

They are also to be credited with the fact that they hadt
deal with one of the most difficuld cases in point of extent of
testimony and number of witnesses of any case that has been pres-
ented here for years.

Now, I do not question their sincerity; and, under ordinary
eircuastances, I take it, it is the duty of Members of this House

to fol.ow the suggestions and recommendations made by the majority

Memoirs_Box1_Folder12_204.tif



=i

of the committee that has exanined a ecase of this kind. While,
therefore, I do not gquestion the sincerity of my fellowemembers

who wrote the majority report, neither do I question very
seriously their judgement up to a certain point. When you cone

to examine the majority report down to a certain point, it will

be found substantially right, but when they become impregnated
with the germs of "aliundesisn" they seem to act, as it appears

to me with utter disregard to the law that should control in a case
of this kind.

In a few moments I shdll refer bricfly to the question of
aliunde evidence; bubt before touching upon that point I want
to say to my Republican colleagues that this is admittedly a
close case from the standpoint of the majority. There are 6,500
witnesses and 2,500 pages of testimony, and doubtless thousands
and tens of thousands of dollars were spente. And what was the
result? The majority find a plurality of 22F votes in favor of
the contestant out of a total of 28,000 votes cast in that district.
They have taken the position, necessarily, that if there had been
a change of 112 votes in that district dre. Connellethe contestant=
would have been defeatede

Now, gentlemen, you must remémber that while that is con=
ceded by the majority of the committee representing this side
of the House, the Democrats do not concede that the result was
so close. You must take the situation as it existed there; and
there are equities in the case that seem to me to throw a great
deal on the situation. In the first place, we are told that we
ought to fol.ow the majority of the committee because of the
great volume of testimony taken. Now, gentlemen, let me tell
you those are wooden guns piled up there. If you have listened
to the debate up up to the present time you must have been
satisfled of the fact that the case rests upon a very few pages
of testimony and several very simple propositions of law.

The testimony relied upon here is substantially quoted in
the winority report. If any Member will take the two reports and
go off guietly by himself for an hour and analyze this case,
he will come to a conclusion without the necessity of looking
into the testimony further; or if he has listened to the debate
of yesterday, he must in the same way have reached a conclusion
as to how he should vote. ;

Now, the idea of any Republican here trying to hide behind
that mass of testimony, and saying, "I am unable to delve into
all the depths of this case and come to a conclusion, and I o
can satisfy my conscience by following the lead of thls conmlttee,
is, it seecns to me, fallaclous. Bome gentlenen ondhls side underw
take to throw the responsibility on the committee in that way.
They say: "I belleve the members of the committee to be honest,
conscientious men. They have gone through this mass of testliw
mony and we can not do better, under the circumstances, than follow
their conclusion.”

Cn that point I wish your attention. The determination of
this case does not require the consideration of the testimony to
any great extent. The testimony upon which the issue here turns
has been repeadedly read and referred to on both sids of the
House.

Mr. DRISCOLL. Does the gentleman mean to say that all the
material evidence has been read?
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Mpr. SHIRAS. All the naterial evidence, the evidence that you

rely upon, has been mentioned, and its character analyzed and
presented to the House. i

Kr. DRISCOLLe We could not do that in a weeks

Hr. SHIRAS. When you come to consider the questiocns of law
involved here, if you are inclined to give due welght to those
questions, nine-tenths of this testimony must be ruled out
absclutely.

iire CACSELe Has the gentleman read the briefs of the contestant and
contestee in this case?

Mp, SHIRASe I have read the report very carefully three or four
times and have consulted with peactically every member of the
majority of the committee except Mr. Driscoll, whom I tried to see
several times. I sBay the reporte

lipr, CASSHL. I am speaking of the briefs which set forth the case
as presented by the two committees.

Mr. SA{RAS. As I have already =aid, I have not attempted to
read all the testimony in the case, because I have taken the word
of the majority as well as the minority of the committee that
the material evidence on which they rely has been presented.

I think it can be shown that the great mass of this testi~
nony must be ruled out, not only because it comes under the -
head of aliunde proof, but because this aliunde evidence n
can not be applled, owing to the failure to connect it up with
the votes thrown out; and when you come to conslider the matter,
therefore, it will befound that a thousand pages of this testie
mony cannot be properly conslidered.

liow, let us look at another feature of this case. The
Tenth district of Pennsylvanlia in 1902 was Democratic. The Deme
ocratlc candldate for governor carried it by some filve or six
thousand majority; and before the election every Republican who
knew anything about the state of the case in that district
knew that there was very little question that the Democratic
Congressional candidate would carry that district, although
ordinarily a Republican district.

Consequently, the Democrate knowing this, and knowing that
they had more than a fighting chance, there was every reason
in the world why they should put forward a representative
Democrat to lead them to the victory which would surely cone
to them in that district when the votes were cast in 1902.

Mr. GILBERT. What were the changed conditions that led people
to think it would go Democratlc?

Mir. SHIRAS. There was a series of labor strikes growing out of
the coal business there, and Mr. Connell was one of the lead=
in: eoal operators, and it was natural under those conditions
%o expect reprisals.
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The county of Lackawanna gave the Domocratic candidate
for governor between five and six thousand majority. Now,
the Democrats, knowing that this was coming, saw their duty,
and they therefore expected to nominate a Democratic candidate,
because they expected to elect their candidate.

Now what happened? The kind friends of the contestant went
into a Yemocratic conventlion, disrupted it, and, with z very
small minority of the convention apparently, got the Democratic
nominations Although he 18 coming here to-day charging a fraud
against the Democracy, he received and filed a Democratic certw
ificate of nomination in Dauphin County. Iir. Howell, who had
the majority of the convention, also received a Democratic nomi”
nation, ami that wes filed in Dauphin Gountye A contest arose,™
and the courts of Pemnsylvania’decided that the nomination given
tzc:ré Connell was illegal and threw him off the Democratic

eTe

Mpre. 5HANSON. Do you mean he claimed to be the Democratic nominee?

lr. SHIRAS. Yes.

Hr. GILBERT. What proportion of that convention voted for lMr. Connell?
Mr. OLMSTED.. Will my colleague pernit a questlon?

Hr. SHIRAS. Yes.

Mr. GILBERT. What proportion of the Democrats in that conventlon=-
Mr. SHIRAS. I have yielded to my colleague, lr. Olmstead.

Mr. OLHSTEDs. I understood you to find fault with the Democcratic
convention for nominating or attempting to nominate a Republicans

lire GILBERTs As a peunocrate

Mpr. SHIRASe. I say Mre Connell went to a Democratic convention
and was nominatede

Hr. OL‘isﬂ:ED. Let me ask my colleague if he himself was not nominated
by a Democratic organization?

Mr. SHIRAS. Yes, and the three cther Republiecan Congressmen in
Allegheny County also recelved Citizens' noninationg. [re Dalzell
himself received a Citlzens' nomination, although he did not recelive a
Democratlec nomination.

My, OLUSTED. Did you receive Democratic support and were you
4 ected in that way against the regular Republican nominee? 18
not that a fact?

Mp. SHIRAS. That 1s not the fact, sir, as sbateds I ran as an
avowed Republican, and, as 1s often the case, received several

party nouninations.
Mr. KLUTZ. The Democrats did not vote for you, did they?
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Mp. OLMSTED. A good many of them did. (Laughter.)

Mp. SHIRAS. As this matter is becoming a little personal, perhaps
I had bettor refer briefly to the pclitical situation in Allee
gheny Countye We have not any Democratic party in Allegheny
County practically, for they have joined in the fight for good
government; wWe have two Republican parties theres If the Demoe
crats had run a2 Democratic candidabe in uy district agalinst two
Republicans, he would not receive probably more than 4,000 votes
oub of the 30,000 votes caste :

Hp. COLNELL.To which party do you belong?

lirs SHIRASe Do not interrupt mes You are on the flcor today as a
courtesy heretofore glven former members. You must not parti-
eipate in these proceedings, especlally as they concern your own
interests.

When the vote was taken there I had 14,500 votes; the other
Republiecan had about 14,500 votes, so there was but a very small
difference between the two, but the vote that was cast there for
me represented the untrammeled, nonoffiesholding vote in my
district. I think I got practically every fairminded Republican
vote in that district in that particular contest. (Laughter.) I
will tell you why I think S0e

Mp. OLMSTEDe. Then there are 14,500 tramnmeled Republicans in that
district? (Laughters)

Mr. SHIRAS. No; but there are many officeholders in that district,
Federal State, and county (laughter), and two or three thousand
relatives. HNow, I got few of those votes.

Mpr. CASSELe What has become of the parties that noalnated you at
that time? Have not they gone back into the Republican party?

Hr. SHIRAS. I an not going back into the pedigree of Allegheny
Gounty politicse No one can understand thenm, and I can not
expect the gentleman to undemstand Ghem.

Mr. GILBERTs There 1s no contest aboub your seat.

Mr. SHIRAS. The gentleman indicates that I did not represent
the Republicans in my district, intimating that if I did I would
have had a larger majority.

Mp. OLMSTEDs. lo; I think it simply shows that you have become one
of the officeholders.

Mpr. SHIRAS. You look at it from a different point of views. Now
let me tell you gentlemen about that district. Iy Republican
opponent ren on the “organization” Republican ticket, on the sane
ticket as Gavernor Pennypacker, on the so=called "stralght
Republican tickets" Governor Permypacker carried the Twenty=
Ninth Congressional district by 20,000 majority, and my Repub-
1ican State ticket in this Congressional districts Could he have
been more badly defeated?
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nr;?mmm. The same thing occurred over in Lackawanna, did it
no

Mr. SHIRASe I am being diverted from what I was sayings

Mpr. GILBERTs low will the gentleman answer oy question? What
proportion of the Democrats in the convention in this Congressional

district were if favor of the nomination of Mr. Connell as the
Democratic nominee?

Mr. THAYERe Thirtyst@o out of 192e

lire SHIRASe Now, gentlemen, you do not want to hear me on what

‘the Democrats of Allegheny County could, would, or should have

done, or ny political pedigree, but it is simply a question of

fact, "Who was elected?" and you can not sec who has been elected, for
~the Comalttee on Elections has so limited the ingquiry that not

over fifteen of the witnesses whose testinmony was taken is matere
ial to this issue.

Mr. SIBLEY. Let me call your attentione=

Mr. SHIRAS. Let me give the reason, because I do not want to
make a statement and then have to analyze 1t before I go on.s

I started to say that the result of this Democratlc convention
was that not only was lMre. Connell's nomination thrown off the
Democratic ticket, but lir. Howell, the aduitted Democrat,

and whom the Democrats knew had a chance of elsction, was also
thrown off the Democratic ticket.

The SPFEAKER. The time of the gentleman has expired.

Hre McoCLAINe I will yield the gentleman ten minutes more 1f he
desires 1it.

Mr. SHIRAS. The controversy that arose in this Democratic
convention, in which the contestant desired to carry off the prize,
is not material, or ought not to be, except for one phase.
Everyone here who 1s ocandid will admit that if lirs Howell had been
before hls district on the straight Demoeratic ticket, it would
have given hin four or five thousand Democratic majority,
and he would have certalnly gotten it but for the extraordinary
ané pecullar methods of procedure of that Democcratic convention.
Therefore I say, gentlemen, the question in this controversy
is as to the alleged Demccratic convention, with a Republican
candidate, and an actual Democratic candidates I take 1t that
all Republican lembers here who are in favor of fair play well lnow
that Mr. Howoll got 461 majority, instead of the 4,000 or 5,000
he ordinarily would have hade ib is difficult for this commitiee
to show that all thesc votes were intentionally fraudulent. I
take it that all “epublican kembers here who are in favor of
fair play will be interested. 1 take the positlion that in the
consiceration of this case there is ro doubt that the comnlittee
has falled to fully understand tre subgequent effect of this
Democratic convention when figuring upon the majorlty that Howell
would have hade
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Hr. CASSELe Do you mean to say that the committee, which has glven
two weeks' continuous work in going over this evidence and testi=-
mony, four weeks aluost, commencing at 10 o'clock in the morning
and eontinuing until 5 o'clock, and giving through their report
their conclusions that they have arrived at, that they do not
know more of it than you, when you say that you have not been able
even to read it?

JMr. SHIRAS. I hawve been trying to get to the very propositlion,
because the bulk, perhaps, of this testimony, showing what you
did, is what has led up to my general proposition, viz, whether
you have established lhe fact of Hr. Comnell being entitled to &
seat under thils evidences Now, what do you do? You find 461
plurelity in favor of the Demoeratic candidate, and you change that
to 223 in favor of the contestant. How do you do that? Up to
a certain point the commlittes did not go astray. It showed, I
think, good judgement when it took up the case of these three
precincts, which they charged to have been, on their face, full
of frauds To take these up and with careful judgement procecd
to determine how they woulid get at the fraud and what effect the
fraud had on the general resulb.

But they did not treat it fairlys. 1In the first place, they
found 50 illegal votes of persons vwho had not pald their taxes,
50 illegal votes of persons who had not registered, and those,
to some extent, were technically illegal votes, but instead of

those votes out of 0ld Forge and the Second and Third wards of
Winton, and even charging all against Mdr. Howell, what dld they
do? They threw out the entire 797 votes, though Mr. Howell had
454 najoritys. 1

¥r. McCLAINs May the gentleman allow me to interrupt hin for a
moment just to say I will allow hin as much time as he wants and
he can proceed as he desires.

Mr. SHIRAS. Now, taat, gentlemen, is the starting point of this
case. Here aro districts that cast 797 votes that gave lir.

Howell 625 votes and 172 tc the sontestani, and an aamizsion

that part of these were technlically iliegal bailots and not frauds
ulent in the worst senses They threw out those 797 votes, and they o
not show in the evidence taken in 0ld Forge and in the Second and
Third wards of Winton that any single one-nark me=that a single
one of those fraudulent votes had been cact for ir. Howell, but on
the contrary, the only evidence of illegal votes cast was that
they were cast for the contestant. Is that not correct, I ask

the gentleman from New York?

Mp. SHANSONe You mean that there was no fraud on the ballot box?

My. SHIRASe I say in the proof they did not attempt to prove any
of those illegal votes had been cast for lr. Howells

lMp., SWANSONe They were simply people who voted not being properly
reglistered.

Mp. SHIRAS. There may have been folse iupersonatlons, but I an

defending that; I am amliz.tna how they got at the questlon
?;tthe :I;pa.mt.g frg.udulent voteg or assum filegal volese=
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Hr. gILERIg They cash that vote. to ir. Howell without any
ProCil e

lr. SHIRASe They found nothling, in my judgment which should lead
to the throwing out of the entlire precincts. The result of that
was that Mre. Howell still had & majority and then they went back
and by allunde proof=here is the dangerous point in thelr process,
by aliunde proof=they found that 32 of those 797 votes had been
cast for Mr. Connell. Now, what was the result, gentlemen, of
that finding? It was this: Ahere were three precincts with

797 votee and with the large majority of 454 for Mr. Howell which
were absolutely throw.: out. They destroyed this entire vote,

Yet found ir. Howell elected by 8 majority. They then go back and
go over the enbers, you might say, of the destrcyed veies and
find 32 for lir. Connell, and turn that Dsmocratic district,

which gave 454 majorlty for Mr. Howell, over to Mr. Connell by

a unaninous vote=3< for Connell, nothing for Howell. It seens
incredibles

Hpr. SWANSON Which gave that majority?
Hr. SHIRAS. Yo

Hpr, DRISCOLLe. Will the gentleman yield for a question?
Hr. SHIRAS. Gex'tua.lnly .

Hr. DRISCOLLe Is not that the ordinary practice, that wehn a
dis trict or poll is thrown out for fraud, to go back and prove
vobes cast for both parties by evidence aliunde? Was that not
done in the Fifty-fifth Congress in the case of ¥Wise v. Young
and in many other cases.

My, SHIRAS. I do not think 1t was ever done under condltlons as
they existod in thls cass.

Mpr., DRISCOLL. No two conditions in elections are exactly alike,
but where Wwe throw out votes of certain districts becauss of
fraud, the practics for both parties is to go back aud preve the
votes cast for their candidates aliunde.

Mr. SHIRAS. Now, I want tc ask & question in return. Is it nds
a fact that those three dlstricts cast 797 votes, walch gave Mr.
Howell a majority of 454 votes, and by throwing out those
precincts it still left 2 majority of 8, and that the action of
the comnittee in finding those 32 votee put the result in favor
of Mr. Connell?

Mr. DRISCOLLe Why, yes, but-- (Applause on the Democratic side.)
Oh there is ndthing to cheer about this; we are dealing in facts
here. We stated it yecterday ourselves, and 1t 1s not necessary
for a Mugwanp from Pennsylvania to state it over agalne I
simply say, is it not the l.variable rule? Did not irs Howell
have the same chance to go back and prove his votes in those
dtstricts? Did he not have the sane cpportunity te prove them
if he wanted to?

Mr. SHIRAS. Now, gentlemen, I am trying to talk about the
eguitlies in this case.
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Mre NORRIS. May I ask the gentleman a question?
lir« BHIRAG, Certalinliy.

Mr. NORRiISe In your Judgment was the comnitte
m;ring out the three precinets? Do you aaz'eg i?:ﬁ%gg 1‘1.:11

Mp. SHIRAS. I do not agree with them on that oints I do

not eritlcise thenm very harshly, but I do not gsﬂe with them,

What I think they ought to have dome is, having found about

125 irregular votes, Some technically irregular and some absolutely
fraudulent, they shouid hawe deducted those votes, even if they
deducted them all from Howells That would have been bad enough,
but %o throw them all out was unfalr, in my judgment.

Hr. CASSELe. In the report of the Seccond Ward of Winton, 184 vd es
;er: cast for Howell and 178 votes were declared and proved fraudu-
SIlGe

Hr. SHIRASe Who found ti.em froudulent?
Hr. CASSELe Thoy wae chown freaudulent by the evidence.

kre. SHIRAS. Now, we find the case stands in this way. That when
they tock the disputed districts this great number of votes,
amounting to nearly 8c0, were thyewn out of the three precincts,
making a unaninous vote for Connell of 32 %o nothing. Gy if
sustained, would elzct Connell by 24 majoritye Now, that does not
lock like much of a plurality to come into the House with, with
thousands of pages of testimony at an expense of thousands of
dollars, showing only a plurality of 24. Well, what does the
comittee do? They had a tast of "allunddmd', and they then did what,
to my mind, is thg one illegal proposition that bars out most of
this testimonye The testimony Was taken showing that 1,700 illegal
votes were cast; Yes, upward of 2,000 If I am incorrect I wish
the chairman would cocrrect Hfe=s

MRe DRISCOLL. Two thousand and two.

Mp, SHIRAS. .- Two thousand and twoj and when the committee canme

to consider these voles they were of the opinion that there were

a numbsr of frauduient vobes, and under aliunde proof thaey
attenpted to show that a great number had been cast for lMr. Howell,
and thousands of pages of testinony wers taken upon that branch of the
seases I do not say it was wrong to take the testimeny upen that
point, but I say that when the coumitbtee came to make the report
they really barred osut the testi.ony and have prevented its consld-
eration by the House. <hey found, I repeat, that thers were 1,700
illegal votes; and what:did they do? They file a report in which
they say that "at least 200 votes"e-tbat 13 the language of the
reporte-"at least 200" of these votec were cast for Howell.

When they came to make the report, you find that in round
nunbers they deduct 200 from Howell. Lot me show you what that
means. Upon an investigation of the attitude of the aembers of
the committee we find that they ~an not tell who the various
parties were, what thelr names were, or where they were located.
Is this not most extreordinary? In my mind it 1s the turning
point in this cases lNot only we as Republicans can not know,
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but the pposition is powerless to pass upon the two guestions
that arise in each ¢f these 200 casesg Wia the vobe lllsgal,
and was 1% cast for Hr. Howell? If ls the introduction of this
bad precedent that arcuses in the nain my op oSLliole

Thus, having agreed that there were 1,700 illegal votes,
and believing that “at least 200" of then wers cast for Hre
Howell, they promptly charge them up and take from his count
200 vebtes that are not ldentified by name or vobing precincte.

¥r. KENEDY. Why, they were passed upon by the majority of the
connititee.

HMr, SHIRAS. I would like to ask the gentleman a question. Does
the gentleman moan to say that his comnltiee passed upon these
200 votes and has got then entered on the record, in the minutes,
as 300 vobters from certaln precincts? And by a vote of the
connittee determined that they were illegal®

My, EENHEDY. Zhe comnittes passed upon 200 In my judgement
there are a thousande

Mre SHIRAS. I did not araw the reporis
Mr. RBANDELL ©f Texase The comaittee dld not pass on e 200e

Hr. SHIRAS. I am not say there were not 200 illegal votes
there. I am not saying that they ought not to be deducted, if
you can pgfove whem, but I sgy you hive to do 1t in a logal waye
Le% me szy wo thc mesbers of the majority of this comaltice that
when they had a vote that they wanted to deduct from Ire
Howell's count, ong.of the gentlemen should have said, "Hie
Chairman, I move you that the vote of John Smith, illegal by
false registration or nonpayment of taxes, which vobe the evide
ence shows has been cast for Mre. Howell, shall be deducted from
his counte® That should have been pubt to a vote of the entire
commitbtee, and if the committee affirmatively by 1is majority
struck that out, the Republicane and Democrats voting upcn it,
then that vote should have been taken fron tie count of iire Howelle
But what have you done? You have sl ply come to the conclusion=
all of you, as individualsethat there were “at least scs” illegal
votes out of 1,700 that were cast for Hrs Howell, and you have
deducted then without identifying them by the naae of the got.sr
or voting preecinet, a thing I never heard of, even in the solid
Southe" liow, uniess the members of tuls connittee e deny what I
say horethat they have taken 200 votes that thsy can nob :’r.dentiz‘y-
it sesns to me that it shows the dangerous charactex of the alie
unde evidence, and it is upon that that this gentleman (pointing)
relies for obtaining his seat.

lir. CASOELe Mre Speaker, let we answer that just heres First, the
nembers of the minority say that these questione were not discussed
by the majority who slgned this reporte The majority report

was signed by the ma jority members of tnls oc_vmmitt.ee. and it

was nob submitted to the ninority. We passed & resolutlon b;![

vote of the comumittee staling that we thought that Mr. Connel
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was entitled to his seat The
and eigned 1t. . najority then prepared this report

Me. SHIRASs Let me ask the gantlenan a questionss

Mr. JOHNSONe Mr. Speaiker, will the gentlenan let me make a
statement right here? x'do not want to take any of his tine.

My SHIR.Se I will yield to the gentleman.

then and see for curselves mhother there is anyth upon which to
base 1te They do not furnishc uworthsus?%r‘meacom
that they say illegally voted for ur. Howsll, and we ean not exe
anine that, and the House can note.

Hre DRISCOLL HNps Speaker, I would like to ask right here the
gentleman from South Carolina a Question. Is 1t trus that the
majority furniched the alnority those thirtyetwo names? Is it not
trus thahxaakedonemmrt.ommiahuwnmaathathehad
emimdtottwmstorus,andalaotothambers-mthe
minority?

Mr. JOHNBCHs HMay I make anothor statecent?

Mr. SHIRAS. Mvr. Speaker, I have not Jielded to the gentlenant
fron New York (Mre Uriscoll).

My, JOHNSONe May I answer the Gentleman's question?
The SYEAKER. Does the gentleman yield?
Mpr. SHIRAS. Yes, I will yleld to the gentleman from South Carolin:.

Mre JOHNSONe The majority of the commiitee divided up this worke
That is the reason they do not know any more about ite One man
examined one part of the record and ,nother man another. I
exanined all of it. That is the difference. (Laughter.) One
member of the committee who made up the list of the 32 aliunde
votes handed that 1list to the ranking member of the minority of the
comnittee, and the majority of the committee adopted his work.

FOSTER of Illinois. ILet me ask this question. 1 there any
::;denee in the record showing tiat the 200 votes thus thrown
out were cast for lr. Howell? .

Hre. JOHNSONe We do not know whose votes those 200 werej the names
are not glven.

+» SHIRASe HNow, I should like to make thls reply to the gentles
::n from I’etmqvl;a.nia {Mr. Cassel). Ha having admitted that he
and hls five colleagucs on the coumlittoe pasced upon these 200
votesy supposec that on the question of charging up those votes
for kr. Howsll or taking them away from him there had ?can :he
division among thosc six members of the comnittse; suppose
vote had been 4 to 2, then, if the Demwcratic members had come in
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anc% voted on that question, that vote would not have been throwm
OUGe

In other words, there was only a majority of a majority
voting upon that question of striking out these vobtes. The
result is that the comnittee iteelf does not know what those 200 votes
;i;epmsent.. Phey ecould not agree and have not agreed on that pcint.
hose votes are si ply floating in the alr, without name or habie
tation. No one can identify thoee voters. No member of the
com-ittee or anyone else can 4o S0

¥r. CASSELa I believe that I speak truthfully when I say thai

at least four of the sixz =ambers of the majority of the commlttee,
after having @gone over the testimony on the one side and on the
other, were in favor of pubtting into thle report anyvhere fron 500
to 1,000 of thoee people.

My. SHIRASe [t would not have been ony worse if you had done sce

Mr. QASSEL. he were satsified, and aipposed the ma jority of the
connitbtee would bes

Mp. SHIRASe I am simply asking for falr play in this matter.
I say that unless you show whose votes those 200 were, they ought
not to be throwmn oute It secms to me this 1s only ordinary falr play.

Hre. DRISCOLL. Will the gentleman allow ne to ask one MOore quesde
tion=that is all?

Hre. SHIRADs (‘;er‘t-aj_n_'l.y.

Mre DRISCOLLe If those three districtsethe Pecond and Third
wards of Winton and the first district of 01d Forge-are thrown
out, how does that Reave-the vote? x

My. SHIRAS. It leaves the vote8 in favor of lMr. Howell.

Mr. DRISCOLLe MNow, is it not true that Mr. Howell d4ic not try %e
prove aliunde any of the votes cast for hin or any of the illegal
vabes »lleged to have been cast for upr. Connell? That is true,
is it not?

Mp. SHIRASe. I will make apractical answer Lo that question in

this ways It wae competent perhaps, for MHre Howell to prove by
aliunde testimony the whole 2,000 Vobes, and 1t would have cost hin
$10,00C or §15,000s That sort of proceeding on the ot.her“alde

oSt the contestant probvably §50,000e Such 3 contest of "alle
undeisa® would be a farce, and the prize would go to the biggest
pureEes -

Mpre. CRISCOLLs If you have ‘read the evidence, have you any doubt
th;t. at least, we will s3 , 10 1llegal votes, becauce that nucber
Fould be sufficient, were shown by evidence aliunde bub gomlgpt%nt
to have been cast for Lkre Howell? Have you any doubt about that?
Mp. SHIRAS. I did not quite: eaten the purport of the gentleman's

guestion.
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JR. DRISCOLLs Is there not allunde evidence sufficient to show
that at least 10 of these illegal votes were cast for Hrs. Howell?

MRe CHIRASs I do not think so, upon the evidence.
liRe DRISCOLIes Have you examined 1t?

MRe SHIRASs I have exanined the testimony on which the sucporters
of the contestant rely.

MR DRISCOLIw You have not read 1t fully; you have not read the
whole of lte

HR+SHIRASe Bat you have not identified the voterss That is the
reason I say that this evidence should have been barred oub.

MR+ FOSTER of I1linois. Has the gentleman any doubt that at
least 20 of these votes were cast for lr. Howell?

MR.SHIRASe Not the leasts

How, I want to call attention to another poini. In these
dsputed districts only 32 votes have been proved for ‘r. Comrell,
Nere 172 are retwrmed. Were the rest of the votes returned for
Mr. Connell, where 172 are returned, legal or illegal? Uinless this
question is determined, it seens to me you have not proved anys
thing. The danger that arises in a case of this kind is clearly
shown in respect to these 200 votesze. Now lire Speaker, I have
taken more time than I expecteds This 1s siuply a quesbicn of
asking for falr playe I doc nob belleve it right to delsgate
our consclences in & close case like thls to the commititee and
allow them to determine the whole gquestion of law and of facte I
have no hesitiation in coming to the ® nclusion that ibt ls unfair
teo the sitiling Member, unfalr to the Tenth Congressicnal dlstrict,
wnfair to the State of Pennsylvania, and unfalr to the Republiean
party to unseat Hre Howell. (Loud applauses)

Ing Rol: Call gnd bhe Aftermsti

A few moments after ire Lanning and myself, on theenublican
side, had coneluded our resariks the speaker directed that the
rell be called on the motlon to award the seat to the contestant,
Connalle

As the members vobed, 1t soon became apparent that the
large Republican majority would be greatly reduced or wiped gute

The vote was as follows: Connell {563 Howell {48, so thabt a2
change of four votes would havepermitted the slitiing nsuber to
retain his seat.
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Before the roll call a number of Republicane absented them
selves, while a half dozen more sab in their ssats and merely
answered "present" when their names were calleds Had a small

fraction of those who refused to vote, as evidence dissatisfaction,

given %helr support to Ir. Howell he would not have been oustod.

During the confusion following the anncuncement of the
resutd, Judge Walter I. Suith of Counecil Bluffs, Iows, came
to me and said, "I have been in Congress a number of years, but
this is the first time I had reason to be ashamed of my voles
Had you opened the atback at the beginning of the procecdings,
inste d of at the end, it would have given many of us a chance
to get our bearingss I had definitely pledged ny vote to Hrs
Connell and had not courage enough to shift at the last morents"
There were cthexr Hepublicans who did not feel thic way, for
General Grosvenor, the doughty old war horse from Chlc, purposely
pasged my seat that he night shou$ out, "“Some day you will regret
having voted for that Democratd” I answered that I "was not
voting for a Democ?at but for justics."

It may be stated that my attitude in this ccntest was
approved by practically all my constituents and the other voters
in the »djoining districts. Later I received ascurance of a
renonination by the parties that had previcusly supported me,
while a message came from the Hepublican organization that though
1% understood I was not a candidate for reeclection, 1t secaed
certain that if I Were I would receive the support of tie “epub-
iilcan leaders who did not wish to see me succeeded by my former

opponent, W. Hes Graham,o whose associabion with Governor Stone had

brought him into popular diefavor. On the other hand General
Grosvenor, by reason of a facticnal ro# had later been refused a
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ination for Congress, in his district, and in his resentment

tried to get the Democratic nomination, &n which hs falled, thus
showing theb his party fealty was only skin decpe

My two distinguished colleagues who had been electod on the
Citizens' ticket at tho time I was, voted for Connell, saying
to me, in explanation, that they hoped to receive the regular
Republlean nomination next time, which might be jeopardized 1f
they voted for a Democrate. These hopes, howover, were blasted, for
having becozs “regular" they were cast aside hy the pollitical
bosses as ones no loanger to be feards I cite these lnstances as
indieating that biind partisanship, or political tinialty, does
not appeal to the electorate at hones

As a sequel to this part of the narpotive, 1t may be stated
that when I declined to be a candidate, uy personal Iriond
and political assoclate, Stephen G. Porter, leader in the Citizens'
party movement, was given %ue regular Republlecan noninatlion for
Congress, over my old rival, W. He Graham, and was elected by
20,000 majoritys Hr. Porter ﬁfbm successively re=clected by
the people until he served somd bwenty-Ifive jeard, attaining the
nigh position of Chairusn of the Commitiee off Foreig: lelations.
Thisz pesult indicibes how the temporary mform-movenent. in
Allegheny County broke the polltical shacklies of nearly fifey
years, and gave to the voters the opportunity to sorect cilie

didates standing high in the popular estecits
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The Contested Election Case of Connell vs. Howell in
Which the Author Participated

e ¢

- |
v -t

Following the nomination of ;andida.t.es by the gitizens'
party,and the endorsement of the same by the Democratic organi-
zation of Allegheny county,objections were filed to this endorsement
by a Democrat holding office under the Republican postmaster of
Allegheny gity ,ahd a hearing on this issue was fixed at Harris-
burg,where such matters were decided by the Dauphin county court.

I was requested to take charge of this matter,and went
to Harrisburg,where I engaged well known legal counsel to appear
in our behalf., While in the court room, awaiting the call of the
caéa,I was much interested in a similar issue then being considered

G daArz A 2 ek

by the judges. At a Democratic,coﬁvention in the 10thedistrict,
William Connell,a Republican,v;s enddrsed by this convention over
George Howell,$he Democratic aspirant., The evidence showed plainly
that Connell had debauched this convention by a lavish use of money
and by various coercive methods. So evident was this that the court
announced before adjournment that the Democratic nomination receiv-
ed by Connell was fraudulent. The court failed,however,to give the
nomination to Howell,so that he was forced to run on an independent
Democratic ticket.

When the &itizens' party case was called,the court with

equal promptness held that the Democratic endorsement was legal,

and dismissed the proceedings.

After the congressional eléctions I found that Howell,
the independent Democratic candidate,had been returned elected by a

majority of more than 500 votes over Connell,and had been duly
Thereupon Connell began 2 contest against his successful

[

seated.
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rival on the ground of fraud or other irregularities. This contest
was designedly referred to the Commitee on Elections ho. 3,composed
of six Republican members friendly to the contestant who had served
in two previous terms,while the minority was made up of three south-
ern Democrats from South Uarolina,Mississippi and Texas,whose appeals
for honest elections were sure to be regarded as a joke by the Re-
publicans of the House.

Active on this committee was a Pennsylvania member,H,
sird Cassel},and a close personal friend of the contestant. This
member,whom I knew very well,began soliciting votes among the
Republican members before the case had been decided.by the commitd
tee. in speaking about the matter to me,he said, it would be a
nice thing to give the"old man" his seat for a Christmas gift,and
that he was going to see "Upgcle Joe" about hastening a favorable
report from the committees 1 told my solicitor that I could not
promise to vote for the seating of Connell,as his Bemocratic op-
ponent had been fairly elected and would pwobably have received a
majority of 5,000 votes if he had not been depriwed of the regular
party nomination by the unfair means used by the Republican candi-
date,since the the Democratic candidate for govenor had carried

@ongressional

this, district by a majority of about 6,000. In concluding this inter
view,1 said that I did not expect to take the floor when the contest
came beiore the House,for my motives might be misrepresented owing
to Democratic support I had received in my own case,

In the course of a few weeks the election commitee,
by sirictly party vote,awarded the seat to the contestant;and, it,
being a privilege issue,ﬁas put on the calendar for immediate con-
sideration. By this time 1t had become known generalLly that Mr.

Connell, the millionaire coal baron,had spent over #100,000 in
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presenting his evidence before the commitee,carling some 6,000
witnesses with a view to muddling up the contest;while his op-
ponent,a country schoolmaster,was unabvle to swmmon wholesale ev-
idence of this kind on account of the prohibitive expense. The
comnitte,on finding that anumber of fraudulent or etherwise il-
legal votes had been cast,did not attewpt to determine for wholec
such ballots were cast,but merely assumed that Howell had been
the sole benericiary of tnese 1llegal ballots,and ip this way the
majority of the commistee found that Connell had been elected by
a little over 200 votes. o

such a metnod ot procedure was ol course preposterous.
The debate on this contest lasted several days,the speakers being
aivided un party Llines,and it was evident tnat the case would be
decided in the same partisan way unless something could be done to
thwart this wrong. Finally I asked John Dalzell and several other
party leaders to prevent the unseating of the duly elected Demo-
cratic candidate,saying that it was a farce for us to protest
against the unfair methods in the south,and at the same time try

to convince the public that a2 millionare candldate had een de-

| " p L -\ ui,
frauded of his seat by a country schoolmastef; Each of these

replied that the committee had heard all the evidence and it was
therefore a safe rule to abide by their findings,and that, as a
new member,I should nct run counter to this custom,.

When one hour remained before the taking of the
vote,I could stand it no longer,and under the time limitation
rule covering the concluding arguments,l took the flcor, Up to
this time little general interest was being taken in the argu-

ments,for with the large Hepublican majority,and no apparent split
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in the party lines,the result seemed certain. On it becoming mani-
fest that I was speaking inppposition to the committee's report,I
was asked to occupy the mid&le aisle,wpile the leading partisans
on either side grouped themselves aboutd me., As a result of this
excitement I felt some concern,but under the time allowance hoped
to be able to explain why I intended to cast my vote for the sit-
ting member, When my time expired it was renewed repeatedly. Thus
I was able,under many interruptions,to prsent my views,and to take
goodnaturedly personalities,although,of course,I was far from sat-
isfied with the manner in which I was able to meet and pairy the
queries designed to embarrass me in every possible way.

Ten minutes before the vote was taken,and just after I
concluded speaking, Wayne Parker,a member from New Jersey,came to
my desk saying that the New Jersey delegation was going to vote
solilly for Howell. I thereupon begged Parker to take a few of
the remaining minutes in behalf of the sitting member,and while
he hesitated,Wm.M.Lanning of New Jersey said he would speak and did
so effectively,for his regularity could not be questioned. 1t may
be stated that the speaker's probity and judicial fairness was
evidenced a few years later when President Roosevelt appointed
him a federa.l judge.

I now quote from the Congressional Recoré a portion of

the debate in the contested election case,under date of February
Sth and 10th,1904:
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